T™ILLINGDON

LONDON

North Planning

Committee

Date: TUESDAY, 9 OCTOBER
2012

Time: 7.00 PM

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 6 -

CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH
STREET, UXBRIDGE UB8

1UW
Meeting Members of the Public and
Details: Press are welcome to attend

this meeting

This agenda and associated
reports can be made available
in other languages, in braille,
large print or on audio tape on
request. Please contact us for
further information.

This Agenda is available online at:

Public Document Pack

To Councillors on the Committee

Eddie Lavery (Chairman)

Allan Kauffman (Vice-Chairman)
David Allam (Labour Lead)

Jazz Dhillon

Carol Melvin

John Morgan

David Payne

Raymond Graham

Published: Monday, 1 October 2012

Contact: Nadia Williams
Tel: 01895 277655

Fax: 01895 277373
nwilliams®@hillingdon.gov.uk

http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=116&MId=1384&Ver=4

Lloyd White
Head of Democratic Services
London Borough of Hillingdon,

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

www. hillingdon.gov.uk

R

ﬁi"
4

=

(—L“” -

INVESTOR IN PEOPLE



Useful information

4
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at w e
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, \‘3‘* A
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a ‘;étu j
short walk away. Limited parking is available at V/
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and MZE

how to book a parking space, please contact

R i
Democratic Services Sl N i \Fg
opping % i
Chimes
Cemr Shopping
)

Please enter from the Council’s main reception ‘ P O
where you will be directed to the Committee ‘(“\% ]
Room. An Induction Loop System is available for £ park
use in the various meeting rooms. Please contact . . ..# M, :
us for further information. — Rt

Muzraring
rar park

Please switch off any mobile telephones and
BlackBerries™ before the meeting. Any
recording of the meeting is not allowed, either
using electronic, mobile or visual devices.

If there is a FIRE in the building the alarm will
sound continuously. If there is a BOMB ALERT
the alarm sounds intermittently. Please make your way to the nearest FIRE EXIT.



A useful guide for those attending Planning Committee meetings

Security and Safety information

Fire Alarm - If there is a FIRE in the building the
fire alarm will sound continuously. If there is a
BOMB ALERT the alarm sounds intermittently.
Please make your way to the nearest FIRE EXIT.

Recording of meetings - This is not allowed,
either using electronic, mobile or visual devices.

Mobile telephones - Please switch off any mobile
telephones and BlackBerries before the meeting.

Petitions and Councillors

Petitions - Those who have organised a petition of
20 or more borough residents can speak at a
Planning Committee in support of or against an
application. Petitions must be submitted in
writing to the Council in advance of the meeting.
Where there is a petition opposing a planning
application there is also the right for the
applicant or their agent to address the meeting
for up to 5 minutes.

Ward Councillors - There is a right for local
councillors to speak at Planning Committees about
applications in their Ward.

Committee Members - The planning committee is
made up of the experienced Councillors who meet
in public every three weeks to make decisions on
applications.

How the Committee meeting works

The Planning Committees consider the most
complex and controversial proposals for
development or enforcement action.

Applications for smaller developments such as
householder extensions are generally dealt with
by the Council’s planning officers under delegated
powers.

An agenda is prepared for each meeting, which
comprises reports on each application

Reports with petitions will normally be taken at
the beginning of the meeting.

The procedure will be as follows:-

1. The Chairman will announce the report;

2. The Planning Officer will introduce it; with a
presentation of plans and photographs;

3. If there is a petition(s),the petition organiser
will speak, followed by the agent/applicant

followed by any Ward Councillors;

4. The Committee may ask questions of the
petition organiser or of the agent/applicant;

5. The Committee debate the item and may seek
clarification from officers;

6. The Committee will vote on the
recommendation in the report, or on an
alternative recommendation put forward by a
Member of the Committee, which has been
seconded.

About the Committee’s decision

The Committee must make its decisions by
having regard to legislation, policies laid down
by National Government, by the Greater London
Authority - under ‘The London Plan’ and
Hillingdon’s own planning policies as contained
in the ‘Unitary Development Plan 1998’ and
supporting guidance. The Committee must also
make its decision based on material planning
considerations and case law and material
presented to it at the meeting in the officer’s
report and any representations received.

Guidance on how Members of the Committee
must conduct themselves when dealing with
planning matters and when making their
decisions is contained in the ‘Planning Code of
Conduct’, which is part of the Council’s
Constitution.

When making their decision, the Committee
cannot take into account issues which are not
planning considerations such a the effect of a
development upon the value of surrounding
properties, nor the loss of a view (which in itself
is not sufficient ground for refusal of
permission), nor a subjective opinion relating to
the design of the property. When making a
decision to refuse an application, the Committee
will be asked to provide detailed reasons for
refusal based on material planning
considerations.

If a decision is made to refuse an application,
the applicant has the right of appeal against the
decision. A Planning Inspector appointed by the
Government will then consider the appeal.
There is no third party right of appeal, although
a third party can apply to the High Court for
Judicial Review, which must be done within 3
months of the date of the decision.



Agenda

Chairman's Announcements

1 Apologies for Absence

a A~ w0 N

Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting
To sign and receive the minutes of the meeting held on 30 August 2012

Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent

and that the items marked Part 2 will be considered in private

Reports - Part 1 - Members, Public and Press

Items are normally marked in the order that they will be considered, though the

To confirm that the items of business marked Part 1 will be considered in public

Chairman may vary this. Reports are split into ‘major’ and ‘minor’ applications. The
name of the local ward area is also given in addition to the address of the premises or

land concerned.

Non Major Applications with a Petition

Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page
6 | Gospel Oak, 228 Ickenham | Erection of a block of 9 flats (4 no. | 11-26
Swakeleys Road, one-bedroom and 5 no. two-
Ickenham bedroom) with associated parking
11246/APP/2012/1575 and amenity space (involving
demolition of existing house)
Recommendation: Refusal
Non Major Applications without a Petition
Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page
7 | 48 Pinn Way, Ruislip Eastcote & | Part two storey, part single storey 27 - 36
East rear extension and single storey
17220/APP/2012/1437 | Ruislip side extension involving

installation of additional windows
to side elevations, involving
demolition of existing conservatory
to rear and existing attached
garage to side

Recommendation: Refusal




8 | Land at Willow Farm Harefield Permanent use of the land as a 37 -62

(field 3116) Jackets gypsy and traveller caravan site

Lane, Harefield and for the keeping and breeding
of horses with associated

57685/APP/2011/1450 operational development, including

the siting of two mobile homes and
a touring caravan, retention of two
stable blocks, and the formation of
a garden area with the erection of
a garden shed, yard and paddock
areas, parking spaces,
landscaping and fencing (Part
retrospective application).
Deferred from North Committee
10 January 2012

Recommendation: Refusal

9 | 91 - 97 High Road, West Part-retrospective application for 63-78
Ickenham Ruislip the retention of 2 x 4 bedroom flats
above 91 and 93 High Road
14964/APP/2011/2969 Ickenham and the retention of an

existing external metal staircase
accessed from the side of No. 97,
plus the addition of a new
staircase accessed from the rear
yard to serve all the flats above
91-97 High Road, Ickenham.

Recommendation: Approval

10 Any ltems Transferred from Part 1

11 Any Other Business in Part 2

Plans for North Planning Committee 79 -115




This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes

NORTH PLANNING COMMITTEE

30 August 2012 1 LI DON

LONDON

Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre,
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW

Committee Members Present:
Councillors Eddie Lavery (Chairman)
Allan Kauffman (Vice-Chairman)
David Allam (Labour Lead)

Jazz Dhillon

Carol Melvin

John Morgan

David Payne

Raymond Graham

LBH Officers Present:

Matt Duigan, Planning Services Manager

Meghiji Hirani, Planning Contracts and Planning Information Manager
Manmohan Ranger, Highways Engineer

Anne Gerzone — Legal Officer

Nadia Williams, Democratic Services

Also Present:
Councillor Michael White

77. | APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda ltem 1)

There were no apologies for absence.

78. | DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE
THIS MEETING (Agenda Item 2)

Councillor David Payne declared a Non Pecuniary interest in ltems 7,
8, 9, & 10 — Former RAF Eastcote, Lime Grove, Ruislip, by virtue of
having been involved as a Ward Councillor and Item 13 — Woody Bay
Station, Ruislip Lido Railway, Reservoir Road, Ruislip; as he was a
member of the Ruislip Woods Management Advisory Group. He left the
room and did not take part in the decision of these items.

Councillor John Morgan declared a Non Pecuniary interest in Item 13 -
Woody Bay Station, Ruislip Lido Railway, Reservoir Road, Ruislip, as
he was a member of the Ruislip Woods Management Advisory Group.
He left the room and did not take part in the decision of this item.

79. | TO SIGN AND RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS
MEETING - 8 AUGUST 2012 (Agenda ltem 3)

The minutes of the meeting held on 8 August 2012 were agreed as a
correct record and signed by the Chairman.

Page 1



80.

MATTERS THAT HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR
URGENT (Agenda ltem 4)

There had been no matters notified in advance or urgent.

81.

TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED PART 1
WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS
MARKED PART 2 WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE (Agenda
Item 5)

It was confirmed that all business marked Part 1 would be heard in
public and all items marked Part 2 would be heard in private.

82.

32 EAST MEAD, RUISLIP -68276/APP/2012/1240 (Agenda Item 6)

Conversion of existing dwelling into 2 x 1 bed self contained flats
to include part two storey, part single storey rear extension and
two storey extension to side to create 2 x 1-bed self contained
flats, with associated parking and amenity space and installation
of a vehicular crossover to front.

Officers introduced the report and drew the Committee’s attention to
the changes in the Addendum (circulated at the meeting) and to note
the correct plan, as the incorrect plan had been attached to the plan
pack.

In accordance with the Council’s constitution, a representative of the
petitions received in objection to the application was invited to address
the meeting.

The petitioners made the following points:

e The proposed development would be detrimental to the
character of the street

e The street was an established family street and objected to a
family home being demolished and replaced with flats

e Would have no objection to the development of a family home

e The proposed development would be opposite St Swithun Wells
school, and with Queensmead school near by, would result in
increased traffic congestion

e The plans showed no access from the boundary gardens
serving the first floor flats which would give rise to security
issues

e Future occupiers would be required to walk down unlit access
road, which had not been designated or intended as a public
foot path

e Concerned about the return of crime and disorder which
residents had experienced prior to the security gates being
installed

e Urged the Committee not to grant permission for the proposed
development, as future occupiers would not be able to access
their rear gardens

e No provision had been made to access amenity spaces

Action by

Matt Duigan
Meghji Hirani

Page 2




e Residents were concerned about the total misuse of access
road

e Suggested that the application submitted was a backland
proposal.

A Member commented that the security gates had been installed as
part of a gating scheme which had been funded through the
Chrysalis Programme.

The agent addressed the meeting and raised the following points:

Agreed with the officer's recommendation of approval

The plans had been amended to consider neighbours
objections

Was aware of the security issues there had been regarding
access to rear parking and was the first to venture through
the access gates in 2003

Suggested that future occupiers would equally be concerned
about security around access, which was why the gates
would be closed at all times

The access road on the side was owned by the application
property

The three terraced benefited from the access road and were
owned by the property

The access road was currently not a used road and would
therefore benefit from being used and from having security
lighting

The scheme complied fully with all the policies and
guidelines; was symmetrical in appearance and would not
look out of place in a terrace of 4 houses

The proposed development had been amended to maintain
on-street parking spaces as was currently the case

Parking (which exceeds space standards) would also be
maintained for future use for the school

Existing hedge would be maintained and award winning
contractors would ensure that due care was taken during
construction and would be instructed to ensure that access
road was kept unblocked

The scheme would provide much needed Iliving
accommodation for disabled people.

The Chairman sought clarification as to whether the applicant owned
the access road or the right of use of the access road.

The agent confirmed that No.32 owned the access road to the side and
rear; whilst all residents had the right to access the access road and
maintenance was shared by all.

A Ward Councillor addressed the meeting and made the following

points:

e Concerned about the size of the proposed development where
the eaves appeared to be over the access road

Page 3




e Concerned about security issues for residents if gates were left
opened

e With regard to lifetime homes, considered that the bathrooms
were inadequate

e Suggested assurances should be sought to ensure that the
access road was left unblocked during development

e Where security lightings were proposed, asked that adequate
measures were taken to ensure they were not detrimental to
neighbours

e Due to the size of the proposed development, urged the
Committee to refuse the application.

In response to a question relating to lifetime homes and the width of
the access way; officers advised that conditions had been imposed to
ensure that the proposed units were large enough. With regard to the
access way, there was a 3m gap between the two blocks.

In discussion, Members raised concerns about future occupiers
needing to go outside the curtilage to use the amenity space. Officers
advised that this would not be the case for the ground floor flats but
would only apply to the first floor flats. With regard to security lighting,
officers advised that although this was mentioned in the condition for
design and access, it did not form part of security and therefore,
Condition 9 could be amended to include this.

The Committee was minded to impose an additional condition due to
concerns raised about the Eaves which appeared in the plans to be
over the alleyway. Officers advised that the drawing in the plan pack on
page 127 showed that the eaves were within the development site and
the elevation details however, showed that the eaves were over the
access road, which the applicant owned. The Committee noted
therefore that an addition condition would not necessary.

Members expressed concerns about access into the alleyway being
shared between vehicles and pedestrians. Officers advised that if the
Committee was minded to approve the application, a condition could
be imposed requiring details of surfacing of the alleyway and speed
restricting measures to be provided for the Local Planning Authority’s
approval.

The Committee agreed to impose an additional condition relating to the
improvement of the access road.

The recommendation for approval, changes to condition 9 and
additional condition was moved, seconded and on being put to the
vote, was agreed.

Resolved — That the application be approved subject to the
conditions and informatives set out in the officer's report,
changes in the Addendum, extended Condition 9 to include
external/security lighting and the following additional condition:

‘No development shall take place until a scheme has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Authority for

Page 4




the improvements of access road to the rear parking, which
should include details of proposed surfacing and speed
restrictions.’

Reason

To ensure that the access road is suitable to serve the parking
area and in the interest of pedestrian safety in accordance with
Policies AM7 and AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

83.

FORMER RAF EASTCOTE, LIME GROVE, RUISLIP -
10189/APP/2012/106 (Agenda ltem 7)

Conversion of 3, one bedroom live work units to 6, one bedroom
flats (Block R).

Officers introduced the report and drew the Committee’s attention to
the changes in the Addendum. It was reported that comments had also
been received from Councillors Catherine Dann and David Payne
giving their full support of the officer's recommendation for refusal of
the application.

In accordance with the Council’s constitution, a representative of the
petition received in objection to the application was invited to address
the meeting.

The petitioner made the following points (also in relation to agenda
items 8, 9 and 10):

e Residents as well as the Pembroke Park Residents’ Association
were all in support of the objections raised by the Eastcote
Residents’ Association

e The proposed changes were unattainable and would be difficult
to live with

e The proposed development would exacerbate existing parking
problems in the estate and on the surrounding roads

e The proposed development would put pressure on shared
amenity space, as no provision had been made

e Concerned about the scale and density of the proposed
development, which would be out of keeping with the local
environment

e Urged the Committee to endorse the officer's recommendation
for refusal.

In discussing the application, Members expressed concerns about the
inadequate parking spaces allocated, lack of amenity spaces and the
density of the proposed development.

The Committee sought clarification as to whether the proposed flats
met with the minimal requirements for internal floor spaces. Officers
advised that the proposal complied with the requirement for internal
floor space but did not meet with requirement for amenity space.

Action by

Matt Duigan
Meghiji Hirani

Page 5




In expressing concerns about the density of the proposed development
and its effects on the larger site, the Committee agreed to attach an
additional informative relating to capacity being reached for the overall
development of the site.

With regard to parking, officers confirmed that that the overall parking
provision was for 625 spaces with a maximum of 654, which meant that
allocation of parking spaces was an issue. The Committee noted that
adding additional units would result in the loss of visitor parking
spaces.

The Committee agreed to add an additional reason for refusal relating
to parking and requested officers to prepare the wording in consultation
with the Chairman and the Labour Lead.

The recommendation for refusal, the additional reason for refusal and
informative was moved, seconded and on being put to the vote, was
agreed.

Resolved — That the application be refused for the reasons set out
in the officer’s report subject to the following additional reason
for refusal and additional informative:

Additional Reason for Refusal

The Proposal provide insufficient parking provision for the
proposed increase in the number of units and would therefore
result in an increase in on-street car parking in an area where
parking demand already exceeds supply, therefore leading to
conditions which would be prejudicial to the operation of the
highway network and pedestrian /highway safety. The proposal is
therefore contrary to Policies AM7 and AM14 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Additional Informative

The applicant is informed that in the view of the Local Planning
Authority the development of the wider site is now at capacity and
thus any increase in the number or size of units is unlikely to be
acceptable.

84.

FORMER RAF EASTCOTE, LIME GROVE, RUISLIP -
10189/APP/2012/108 (Agenda ltem 8)

Conversion of 3 one bedroom live work units to 6, one bedroom
flats (Block H1).

The recommendation for refusal, the additional reason for refusal and
informative was moved, seconded and on being put to the vote, was
agreed.

Resolved — That the application be refused for the reasons set out
in the officer’s report subject to the following additional reason
for refusal and additional informative:

Action by

Matt Duigan
Meghji Hirani

Page 6




Additional Reason for Refusal

The Proposal provide insufficient parking provision for the
proposed increase in the number of units and would therefore
result in an increase in on-street car parking in an area where
parking demand already exceeds supply, therefore leading to
conditions which would be prejudicial to the operation of the
highway network and pedestrian /highway safety. The proposal is
therefore contrary to Policies AM7 and AM14 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Additional Informative

The applicant is informed that in the view of the Local Planning
Authority the development of the wider site is now at capacity and
thus any increase in the number or size of units is unlikely to be
acceptable.

85.

FORMER RAF EASTCOTE, LIME GROVE, RUISLIP -
10189/APP/2012/109 (Agenda ltem 9)

Conversion of 3 one bedroom live work units to 6 x one bedroom
flats (Block L).

The recommendation for refusal, the additional reason for refusal and
informative was moved, seconded and on being put to the vote, was
agreed.

Resolved — That the application be refused for the reasons set out
in the officer’s report subject to the following additional reason
for refusal and additional informative:

Additional Reason for Refusal

The Proposal provide insufficient parking provision for the
proposed increase in the number of units and would therefore
result in an increase in on-street car parking in an area where
parking demand already exceeds supply, therefore leading to
conditions which would be prejudicial to the operation of the
highway network and pedestrian /highway safety. The proposal is
therefore contrary to Policies AM7 and AM14 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Additional Informative

The applicant is informed that in the view of the Local Planning
Authority the development of the wider site is now at capacity and
thus any increase in the number or size of units is unlikely to be
acceptable.

Action by

Matt Duigan
Meghiji Hirani

Page 7




86.

FORMER RAF EASTCOTE, LIME GROVE, RUISLIP -
10189/APP/2012/112 (Agenda ltem 10)

Conversion of 3 one bedroom live work units to 6 x one bedroom
flats (Block J).

The recommendation for refusal, the additional reason for refusal and
informative was moved, seconded and on being put to the vote, was
agreed.

Resolved — That the application be refused for the reasons set out
in the officer’s report subject to the following additional reason
for refusal and additional informative:

Additional Reason for Refusal

The Proposal provide insufficient parking provision for the
proposed increase in the number of units and would therefore
result in an increase in on-street car parking in an area where
parking demand already exceeds supply, therefore leading to
conditions which would be prejudicial to the operation of the
highway network and pedestrian /highway safety. The proposal is
therefore contrary to Policies AM7 and AM14 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Additional Informative

The applicant is informed that in the view of the Local Planning
Authority the development of the wider site is now at capacity and
thus any increase in the number or size of units is unlikely to be
acceptable.

Action by

Matt Duigan
Meghiji Hirani

87.

LAND REAR OF 24 COURT ROAD, ICKENHAM -
68420/APP/2012/633 (Agenda ltem 11)

Conversion from World War Il hut to 1 x 1-bed self- contained
dwelling with associated amenity space.

In introducing the report, officers advised that the applicant had
provided late information regarding the planning application, giving
insufficient time for officers to review in detail. It was noted for instance
that revised plans submitted, may overcome certain issues and raise
issues in another area. Furthermore, there were concerns regarding
the changes put forward by the applicant which may result in major
changes. Members were informed that the applicant had been advised
to withdraw this application and submit a new application. Officers
advised that if the Committee was minded, it could defer the item to
allow officers to properly review the new details and present to another
Committee meeting.

The Chairman commented that unless the applicant was prepared to
withdraw this application, the Committee would consider it at this
meeting.

Action by

Matt Duigan
Meghiji Hirani

Page 8




In accordance with the Council’s constitution, a representative of the
petitions received in objection to the application was invited to address
the meeting.

The petitioner made the following points:

e The petitioner's home included the application site

e Opposed to the proposed back land development, which would
be inappropriate and harmful to the local area as stated in point
7.01 of the officer’s report

e The proposed development would damage the Court Road part
of the Ickenham Conservation Area

e The proposed replacement of an historic ex-forces billeting hut
would consist of a makeshift substandard residential building,
which when fenced off would destroy the unity of the existing
garden

e It would cause damage to the environment and result in the loss
of local wild life

e The proposed development would result in the substantial loss
of trees, necessitating in large scale removal of mature trees to
meet day lighting requirements

e The proposed development would be unsustainable as a
residential unit due to inadequate provision of basic amenities

e The hut was currently used for storage by 24 Court Road

e The proposed development would deprive 24 Court Road of a
utilised parking space

e Asked the Committee to refuse the application.

The agent/applicant was not present at the meeting.

The recommendation for refusal was moved, seconded and on being
put to the vote, was agreed.

Resolved — That the application be refused for the reasons set out
in the officer’s report.

88. | LINDA JACKSON CENTRE, RICKMANSWORTH ROAD, Action by
NORTHWOOD - 3807/APP/2012/1563 (Agenda Item 12)
Single storey extension. Matt Duigan

Meghiji Hirani

The recommendation for approval was moved, seconded and on being
put to the vote was agreed.
Resolved - That the application be approved subject to the
conditions and informatives set out in the officer’s report.

89. | WOODY BAY STATION, RUISLIP LIDO RAILWAY, RESERVOIR Action by
ROAD, RUISLIP - 1117/APP/2012/1257 (Agenda Item 13)
Demolition of existing buildings, provision of 3 new buildings | Matt Duigan
(woodland centre, ticket office and mess room) with associated | Meghji Hirani

landscaping.

Page 9




Officers presented the report to the Committee and drew their attention
to the amendments in the Addendum sheet.

The recommendation for approval and the changes in the Addendum
sheet was moved, seconded and on being put to the vote was agreed.

Resolved - That the application be approved subject to the
conditions and informatives set out in the officer’s report and
changes in the Addendum.

The meeting, which commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 8.34 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the
resolutions please contact Charles Francis on 01895 250692. Circulation of these
minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.

Page 10




Agenda ltem 6

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address GOSPEL OAK (228) SWAKELEYS ROAD ICKENHAM

Development: Erection of a block of 9 flats (4 no. one-bedroom and 5 no. two-bedroom)
with associated parking and amenity space (involving demolition of existing
house)

LBH Ref Nos: 11246/APP/2012/1575

Drawing Nos: 1640-1
1640-2
1640-3 Rev. B
1640-4 Rev. B
1640-5 Rev. B
2435 (Topographic survey)
Design & Access Statement, May 2012
Arboricultural Report, March 2012
1:1250 Location Plan

Date Plans Received:  27/06/2012 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 27/06/2012
1. SUMMARY

This proposal seeks permission to demolish the existing house and erect a two storey
block of 9 flats, with accommodation in the roof space and off-street parking for 11 cars
in the front garden.

The flatted block would have an excessive density in terms of satisfying the Mayor's
density guidance. The scheme is also considered to be of an excessive scale and bulk
and would be of a poor design so that it would appear as an incongruous addition to the
street scene and would fail to harmonise with the spacious character of the surrounding
area.

The property also fails to satisfy Lifetime homes standards and as no S106 Agreement
has been signed at this stage, the scheme fails to make a proportionate contribution
towards education provision.

The application is recommended for refusal.

2, RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development, by reason of its excessive density, scale, bulk and design,
would result in the over-development of the site and a cramped form of development that
would appear as an incongruous addition within the street scene. The proposal therefore
fails to harmonise with spacious character of the surrounding area and would be
detrimental to the visual amenities of the street scene, contrary to Policies BE13 and
BE19 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007), Policies 3.4, 3.5, 7.1, 7.4 and 7.6 of the London Plan (July 2011) and the Council's

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 11



adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

2 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The scheme fails to satisfy 'Lifetime' homes standards, contrary to policy 3.8 of the
London Plan (July 2012) and the Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance
'Accessible Hillingdon', January 2010.

3 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The development is estimated to give rise to a number of children of school age and
additional provision would need to be made in the locality due to the shortfall of places in
schools serving the area. Given that a legal agreement at this stage has not been offered
or secured, the proposal is considered to be contrary to Policy R17 of the adopted
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and the adopted
London Borough of Hillingdon Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document
(July 2008).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all
relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies,
including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the
Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First
Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national

guidance.
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012)
LPP 3.4 (2011) Optimising housing potential
LPP 3.5 (2011) Quality and design of housing developments
LPP 3.8 (2011) Housing Choice
LPP 5.2 (2011) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions
LPP 5.3 (2011) Sustainable design and construction
LPP 5.13 (2011) Sustainable drainage
LPP 7.1 (2011) Building London's neighbourhoods and communities
LPP 7.2 (2011) An inclusive environment
LPP 7.3 (2011) Designing out crime
LPP 7.4 (2011) Local character
LPP 7.6 (2011) Architecture
BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
BE18 Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 12



BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the

area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

OES8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

H3 Loss and replacement of residential accommodation

H4 Mix of housing units

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking
facilities

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM15 Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010

SPD-PO Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document, adopted
July 2008

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is sited on the north western side of Swakeleys Road, opposite the
grassed island site with mature trees which forms the junction with Woodstock Drive and
Roker Park Avenue. Some 12m to the south of the application site is a planted bed which
marks the siting of the Gospel Oak, an ancient tree. This is enclosed by a footpath which
provides a pedestrian link to the southern end of Highfield Drive, which forms a cul-de-
sac, of which the rear gardens of properties fronting this road adjoin the application site at
the rear.

The application site is sited within a dip in the road, with ground levels rising to the north
and south. Adjoining the site to the south is No. 230, a detached house which has a
narrow frontage onto Swakeleys Road. To the north is No. 226, a large property which
appears to be in multiple occupation and has a mature Oak in the front garden on the
shared boundary with the application site.Immediately in front of the application site is a
bus stop.

In the absence of any formal designation, the application site forms part of the 'developed

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 13



area' as identified within the Proposals Map of the Saved Policies UDP (September 2007).
The site is also covered by TPO 621.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

It is proposed to demolish the existing detached house and erect a two storey block with
accommodation in the roof space comprising 9 flats, 2 x one-bedroom and 2 x two-
bedroom flats on each of the floors and a two-bedroom flat within the roof space. The
block would be staggered with an overall width of 18.1m, leaving 1.5m and 1.8m gaps to
the side boundaries with Nos. 226 and 230 respectively and a main depth of 20.1m. The
block would have a hipped roof with a variable eaves height (4.1m to 5.3m high) and
maximum ridge height of 9.1m incorporating large offset front and rear gables, half
dormers and rooflights to all elevations, (2 front, 2 rear and 7 side rooflights, 3 of which
would face No. 226 and 4 would face No. 230). The front and rear elevations would
include projecting bay window elements.

11 parking spaces would be provided within the front garden, including 1 disabled space.
Bin storage would be provided at the front of the site.

The application is supported by a Design & Access Statement and an Arboricultural
Report.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History
There is no relevant planning history on this site.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.10 To seek to ensure that development does not adversely affect the amenity and
the character of the area.

PT1.16 To seek to ensure enough of new residential units are designed to wheelchair and
mobility standards.

PT1.39 To seek where appropriate planning obligations to achieve benefits to the
community related to the scale and type of development proposed.

Part 2 Policies:

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012)
LPP 3.4 (2011) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2011) Quality and design of housing developments
LPP 3.8 (2011) Housing Choice

LPP 5.2 (2011) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

LPP 5.3 (2011) Sustainable design and construction

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 14



LPP 5.13 (2011) Sustainable drainage

LPP 7.1 (2011) Building London's neighbourhoods and communities

LPP 7.2 (2011) An inclusive environment

LPP 7.3 (2011) Designing out crime

LPP 7.4 (2011) Local character

LPP 7.6 (2011) Architecture

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE18 Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OE8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

H3 Loss and replacement of residential accommodation

H4 Mix of housing units

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking facilities

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM15 Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

HDAS-LAY  Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

SPD-PO Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2008

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 10th August 2012
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable
6. Consultations

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 15



External Consultees

4 neighbouring properties have been consulted and a site notice was displayed on the 24/7/12.
Two petitions and 5 individual responses have been received. The two petitions have 38 and 25
signatories and both state:-

'Petition against the proposed development of 228 (Gospel Oak) Swakeleys Road, Ickenham.

The demolishing of existing house and replacing with a three storey block of flats consisting of: four
two bedroom flats; four one bedroom flats; and one two bedrooms flat with balcony, overlooking the
rear of properties 51 and 53 Highfield Drive, Ickenham.'

The individual responses make the following comments:-

(i) Proposal for an unattractive oversized building that appears predictably monolithic and
unornamented, detracting from the aesthetics of the area. It will be out of keeping with surrounding
historic homes and the character of the street, changing the nature of the neighbourhood,

(i) Proposal will result in a loss of privacy to adjoining properties at the rear. As proposal will be
three stories high, incorporate a second floor balcony and much closer to rear party fence than
existing property, living rooms on the first and second floors will have uninterupted views into our
house and garden,

(iii) The increase in car usage at this dangerous spot at the bottom of the dip, where there are blind
spots and sloping drives is far too great on this very busy road which could increase accidents, with
traffic queuing behind buses and cause problems for pedestrians and those using the bus stops,
particularly residents of surrounding sheltered housing,

(iv) 11 parking spaces for 9 flats is inadequate, particularly parking on the D-shaped green opposite
is severely limited,

(v) Proposal will establish unfortunate precedent for similar proposals,

(vi) Flats have a reputation for being dirty and rowdy with all kinds of people coming and going and
invariably all night parties,

(vii) Dust, noise and traffic generation and inconvenience of the demolition and building works will
be unimaginable,

(viii) Impact on property prices should be considered,

(ix) Applicant also owns adjoining property, so if this application is successful, where will it end?

Ickenham Residents' Association:

The Association is concerned that what is essentially a 3 storey (ground, first and second floor
levels of accommodation) block of flats on this site currently occupied by one house, would be
completely out of character with the surrounding area in this section of Swakeleys Road, which
consists mainly of detached and semi detached 2 storey houses set in reasonably spacious plots.
The proposed development appears to be too overbearing due to its bulk and the proximity to
adjacent properties thus failing the criteria of the UDP Policy BE21.

We also feel the proposal contravenes the following policies;

Policy BE13 - the proposals would not complement the existing street scene - and

Policy BE19 - the effect on existing local amenity - should also be taken into consideration.

Policy H7 (ii) & (iv) - see comments below

Consideration should also be given to Policy BE2 due to the proposal site being immediately
adjacent to the Gospel Oak Site, which is of significant historical and local community interest.
Design and Access Statement of the application:

179 Swakeleys Road is located too far from this site to be considered as a reference site.

Parking spaces proposed are 11 in total for 9 flats, which allows a minimum of 1 per flat plus 2 for
possible visitors or trades vehicles. This is very restrictive and unrealistic in our estimation, for
instance if many of the spaces are occupied we question access to certain of them. The siting of

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 16



such parking, being at the foremost area of the site, and immediately adjacent to each neighbours
side boundaries could in our opinion be detrimental to those neighbours environments.

The traffic generated by these proposals on a site located on a very busy North/South road artery
with a public bus-stop just outside no. 228 would considerably worsen an already congested
situation. Traffic regularly builds up at the busstop in Swakeleys Road, sometimes with tailbacks
right up to Swakeleys Roundabout. The constant flow of vehicles travelling along this stretch of the
road will cause safety issues for vehicles accessing and egressing the development.

Consideration must be made of Policy AM7, which seeks to prevent existing traffic flow problems
from worsening.

We cannot find any information on the siting of Waste storage, but it seems
undesirable/unreasonable to have waste storage bins immediately adjacent to the public footway
and in particular a bus stop

The Association objects to this application.

Internal Consultees
Urban Design/Conservation Officer:

BACKGROUND: This is currently a two storey house, with a single storey garage adjacent, which
has been built forward of the building line. The property is barely noticeable in the streetscene
behind the front walls and mature trees in the front garden.

The proposed replacement building would stretch across the site on three storeys, and over half of
the front facade, which is finished with a huge gable, would be significantly further forward than the
building line of the adjoining property, so accentuating its overlarge scale and bulk. The gable
itself, with oculus, slightly lop-sided catslide to one side and vertical glazing, together with the 35
degree pitch of the roof would comprise a combination of features from different traditions which
would not work well with the vernacular style bay windows and eaves dormers also proposed. The
rear elevation with attic level glazing and balcony above 1930 s bay windows would similarly
constitute an awkward combination of features which would not sit well together. These poor
design elements, to front and rear, would increase the perception of a very bulky appearance.

In conclusion, the replacement building would be very noticeably bulky and out of scale in the street
scene, and the design would bring a discordant note, out of keeping with properties in the vicinity.
The parking of the front garden with eleven cars parked in a formal layout, would also be at odds
with the front gardens of other properties in the area.

RECOMMENDATIONS: Unacceptable
Highway Engineer:

Application site is located on the western side of Swakeleys Road and lies within a residential area
comprising large detached and semi-detached houses. Swakeleys Road is classified as a Borough
Secondary Distributor road and is benefiting from 6.8m wide carriageway and 2.0m wide footway
on both sides with no parking restriction.

The site is shown to be in an area with a PTAL accessibility rating of 1b, as indicated on maps
produced by TfL. The site is therefore considered to have a low level of accessibility. A right turn
access from Swakeleys Road into Woodstock Drive and a one way egress out of Woodstock Drive
into Swakeleys Road is located within close vicinity of the application site. A northbound bus stop is
placed at the site frontage, serving 3 buses, U9 to Harefield, U1 to Ruislip and U10 to Ickenham
and Ruislip.

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 17



The proposal is to demolish the existing four bedroom detached dwelling with its associated nine
off street parking space and erect a block of nine one/two bedroom flats, with a total of eleven off
street parking spaces, which may result in an intensification of use of the site. Policy AM14 of the
UDP refers to the Council's vehicle parking standard contained in the Annex 1. The standard
requires a maximum of 1.5 off street parking and one covered and secured cycle parking for each
dwelling.

The following highway issues have been considered in determining acceptability of this application:-

1) Swakeleys Road is generally known as a congested network during peak hours but trip
generation from 9 flats is unlikely to result in excessive delays to vehicular journey times.

2) In July 2007 pre-application advice was provided for a tentative redevelopment of 226 - 230,
Swakeleys Road. During discussions with the applicant and their transport consultants, concerns
were raised regarding the network being already saturated during peak hours. Furthermore the
effect of proposed redevelopment of no 226, 228 and 230 on the safety of highway users arising
from right turning traffic out of the site were discussed and related to them.

3) There are highway safety concerns for traffic turning right out of the site considering proximity of
site access to the existing bus stop location, affecting visibility splay. The applicant should therefore
provide a plan demonstrating that the visibility splay is not compromised by the proximity of bus
stop location at the site access for traffic turning right out of the site.

4) The applicant has failed to provide secured and covered cycle parking within development.

However, taking into account that each application should be considered individually, without
assuming that adjoining sites may follow suit in future, and considering that there are sufficient
unrestricted parking spaces available in the surrounding area, the proposal is unlikely to result in
major traffic delays to the detriment of highway and pedestrian safety, and therefore no objection is
raised on the highway aspect of the proposal subject to the following condition being applied.

Conditions:-

1) The development hereby permitted shall not be commenced until details of the sight lines at the
point of the vehicular access to the highway have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.

2) No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until details of covered and
secure cycle storage have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The facilities shall be permanently retained on site and be kept available for the use of
cyclists.

Tree Officer:

Tree Preservation Order (TPO) / Conservation Area: This site is covered by TPO 621.

Significant trees / other vegetation of merit in terms of Saved Policy BE38: There are two mature
protected Oaks (T3 and T4 on TPO 621) close to the front (southern) boundary of the site. These
trees form a group with two other protected Oaks (T1 and T2 on TPO 621) which are situated in the
neighbouring front garden (at No. 230). There is another protected Oak (T7 on TPO 621) in the
neighbouring garden at No. 226, which is situated closer to the houses and set behind a non-
protected Hawthorn and a protected Norway Maple (T6 on TPO 621).

The protected Maple and four protected Oaks significantly contribute to the amenity and arboreal

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 18



character of the area and have high and very high amenity values respectively. The trees in the
rear garden do not constrain development.

The tree report that has been submitted to support the application provides adequate protection for
the important trees on-site.

Scope for new planting (yes/no): N/A
Does scheme conform to HDAS (yes/no) : N/A

Does scheme conform to SUDS (yes/no) : Permeable block paving is proposed for the front of the
site.

Recommendations: The tree report is adequate, however a landscaping scheme should be
submitted to support the application. This matter can be dealt with by condition.

Conclusion (in terms of Saved Policy BE38): Acceptable, subject to conditions RES8
(implementation), RES9 (1, 2, 4, 5, 6) and RES10.

Access Officer:

In assessing this application, reference has been made to London Plan July 2011, Policy 3.8
(Housing Choice) and the Council's Supplementary Planning Document - Accessible Hillingdon"
adopted January 2010.

The scheme should be revised and compliance with all 16 Lifetime Home standards (as relevant)
should be shown on plan.

The following access observations are provided:

1. It is noted from the Design & Access Statement and plan that an accessible parking space would
be provided for disabled motorists. However, the space shown on plan appears not to have been
designed in accordance with Part M to the Building Regulations 2000 (2004 edition) or BS
8300:2009.

2. Level access should be demonstrated by way of a topographical survey for a suitably detailed
plan to confirm that level access would be achieved.

3. To accord with the Council's adopted Supplementary Planning Document 'Accessible Hillingdon’,
the design should be amended to incorporate a minimum of one passenger lift to serve all flats
above ground floor level. The lift should be designed in accordance with all relevant building
regulations.

4. A minimum of one bathroom within each flat should be designed in accordance with Lifetime
Home standards. At least 700mm should be provided to one side of the WC, with 1100 mm
provided between the front edge of the toilet pan and a door or wall opposite.

5. To allow bathrooms to be used as wet rooms in future, plans should indicate floor gulley
drainage.

Conclusion: no objection would be raised provided the above observations are incorporated into
revised plans prior to any grant of planning permission.

S106 Officer:

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 19



Given the scheme is below the 10 unit threshold for a major scheme, education is the
only likely planning obligation arising from this proposal.

| have calculated the education contribution to be £17,683 based upon the following:

Existing:
4 bed house with 6 habitable rooms

Proposed:
4 x 1 bed flats with 3 hbrms in each
5 x 2 bed flats with 4 hbrms in each.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

There is no objection in principle to the demolition of the existing house which does not
have any intrinsic architectural or historical interest nor to the intensification of the
residential use of this plot within an established residential area, subject to normal
development control criteria.

There has been new guidance on the development of gardens and the interpretation of
related policies which would be a material consideration in determining the principal of
development on this site. This includes the Letter to Chief Planning Officers: Development
on Garden Land dated 19/01/2010, the London Plan (July 2011) and National Planning
Policy Framework (March 2012).

The key point in relation to the proposed scheme is that residential gardens are no longer
included within the definition of 'previously developed land' - ie. 'brownfield land'. There is
hence no automatic presumption that residential gardens are nominally suitable for
development or redevelopment, subject to compliance with normal development control
criteria. As regards this proposal, it is considered that although there would be more built
development on site, the new block would occupy a similar siting to the existing house and
the majority of the garden area would be retained, with no significant tree loss involved.
Therefore, there would be no objection in principle on 'garden grabbing' grounds.

Paragraph 3.3 of the Council's Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) HDAS:
Residential Layouts also advises that the traditional residential character of an area can
be compromised where there is an over-concentration of flatted development. The
guidance goes on to advise that to avoid this, the cumulative impact of residential
conversions are unlikely to be acceptable where more than 10% of the houses in a street
have been converted or redeveloped to provide flats or other forms of housing. On
residential streets longer than 1km, the guidance advises that the application site should
be taken as the midpoint on a 1km stretch of road to be assessed. Using this assessment,
it is only the adjoining property, No. 226 which appears to have been
redeveloped/converted to flats/multiple occupation within this stretch of road. As such, the
10% figure would not be breached.

7.02 Density of the proposed development

Policy 3.4 of the London Plan (July 2011) advises that Boroughs should ensure that
development proposals maximise housing output having regard to local context, design
principles, density guidance in Table 3.2 and public transport accessibility. Table 3.2
establishes a density matrix to establish a strategic framework for appropriate densities at
different locations.

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 20



7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

The site is located within a suburban area and has a Public Transport Accessibility Level
(PTAL) of 1b, where 6 is the most accessible and 1 the least.

Taking the site parameters into account, the matrix recommends a density of 40 - 65 u/ha
and 150 - 200 hr/ha for schemes with an average unit size of between 3.1 - 3.7 hr/u such
as is being proposed here. This proposal equates to a density of 75 u/ha and 267 hr/ha,
which is in excess of the Mayor's guidance.

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The proposal is not sited within or close to a conservation area or an area of special local
character. The scheme would also not affect any listed or locally listed building, nor is it
sited within an area that is of archaeological interest.

Airport safeguarding

There are no airport safeguarding impacts raised by this application.
Impact on the green belt

The application site is not located within or sited close to the Green Belt and therefore
does not raise any Green Belt issues.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

This part of Swakeleys Road is characterised by large detached two storey houses of
varying scale and design which are set well back on their spacious plots, within an
established residential area that contains many mature trees.

The proposed residential block would generally respect the general staggered siting of
properties on this part of Swakeleys Road, being set behind No. 226 but forward of No.
230. However, the building would have an overall width of 18.1m, extending across much
of the width of the site, leaving only small gaps of 1.5m and 1.8m to the side boundaries.
Much of the accommodation in the roof space would also be incorporated within a large
gable, giving the impression of a three storied building which would be sited forward of its
neighbour. The overall impression would be of an overlarge and cramped development on
its plot which would be out of keeping with the spacious character of surrounding houses.

The Council's Conservation/Urban Design Officer also advises that the design of the
proposal, including the large gable with oculus, catslide roof to one side, vertical glazing,
35 degree pitch roof, bay windows and eaves dormers on the front elevation comprises a
combination of design features from different traditions that do not sit comfortably
together. The rear elevation with attic level glazing and balcony above 1930s bay windows
would similarly constitute an awkward combination of features which would not sit well
together. The Officer concludes that the design elements would increase the perception of
a very bulky property, out of scale in the street scene, and its design would bring a
discordant note, out of keeping with properties in the vicinity.

It is therefore considered that the proposal fails to comply with Policies BE13 and BE19 of
the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).
Impact on neighbours

In terms of the adjoining properties, the proposed block would not project significantly
beyond their rear elevations. On the boundary at No. 226 which is on 0.5m - 0.7m higher
ground as compared to the application site, is a garage with a large swimming pool
enclosure behind which extends into the rear garden. There are no habitable room
windows within this side elevation that would be adversely affected by the proposal. No.
230 has an attached garage on the boundary adjoining the application site and the side
elevation of the property does not contain any windows.

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 21



There are two properties that front Highfield Drive which adjoin the application site at the
rear. No. 51 Highfield Drive is raised above the rear garden level of the application site by
some 0.5m - 0.7m level. The nearest proposed window in the rear elevation of the
proposed block would be sited some 25m from the nearest part of the rear elevation of
No. 53. This distance is adequate to ensure that the proposal would be sufficiently remote
from this neighbouring property to ensure that the minimum 15m and 21m distances
recommended by the Council's Design Guide 'Residential Layouts' would be satisfied to
ensure the proposal did not appear unduly dominant or result in an unacceptable loss of
privacy from the property or its 3m deep patio area. The ground is more level in the rear
garden of No. 53, but the separation distance between this neighbouring property and the
rear elevation of the proposal would be in excess of 24m, which again satisfies design
guidance. There are also many mature trees and shrubs along the rear boundary that
would assist in the screening of the proposal from these neighbouring properties,
particularly in the summer months when gardens are more intensively used.

The proposal would not be detrimental to the amenities of surrounding residents and fully
complies with policies BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the Council's adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and relevant design guidance.

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

In order for proposed residential accommodation to provide a satisfactory standard of
residential accommodation, the London Plan (July 2011) establishes minimum internal
floor space standards which development proposals are expected to satisfy. These
standards require minimum floor areas of 50sqgm, 61sgm and 70sqm for 1 bedroom/2
person, 2 bedroom/3 person and 2 bedroom/4 person flats respectively. Although the
larger flats satisfy these standards, the one-bedroom flats at 46 - 48sgm are slightly
undersized. However, it is considered that the shortfall is not so significant to justify an
additional reason for refusal.

All the habitable rooms would have an adequate outlook and natural lighting.

Policy BE23 of the saved policies UDP requires the provision of external amenity space,
which is usable in terms of its shape and siting. The Council's HDAS specifies that shared
amenity space for flats should be provided with the minimum overall provision equating to
20sgm and 25sgm of amenity space for each one and two bedroomed units respectively.
In order to satisfy this standard, a minimum overall amenity space provision of 205sgm
would be required. The scheme would provide some 350sgm of shared amenity space
which accords with minimum guidance.

The ground floor units would also have patio areas/planted beds immediately adjacent to
their habitable room windows which will improve the privacy for the ground floor
occupants.

7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The Council's Highway Engineer advises that although highways concerns were raised in
discussions with a prospective developer on an earlier pre-application proposal for a
larger residential re-development scheme which also involved Nos. 226 and 230
Swakeleys Road, each application has to be treated on its merits.

Swakeleys Road does experience congestion during peak hours but traffic generated by
the proposed 9 flats is unlikely to result in excessive further delays to passing traffic.
There is a potential highway concern regarding vehicles turning right from the site, which
could interfere with the bus stop, but a plan showing an appropriate visibility splay would
mitigate this concern, which could be conditioned. The lack of cycle parking could also be

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 22



7.1

7.12

713

714

715

7.16

717

7.18

719

condition. No objections are raised to the number and layout of the parking spaces.

As such, the Highway Officer raises no objections to the scheme, in accordance with
policies AM7, AM9 and AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007).

Urban design, access and security

- Mix of units

It is considered that the mix of one and two bedroom units would be acceptable in terms
of policy H4 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

Disabled access

The Council's Access Officer raises a number of deficiences of the scheme in terms of
satisfying Lifetime homes standards.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable, given the nature of the proposal.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

The Council's Trees and Landscape Officer advises that the tree information submitted
with is adequate and has demonstrated that the scheme would provide adequate
protection for existing trees ion and close to the site and would make suitable provision for
their retention. Various conditions are recommended and these would have been attached
had the application not of been recommended for refusal. The scheme therefore complies
with policy BE38 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

Sustainable waste management

With respect to bin storage, this is shown behind an existing 1.8m high wall so would not
be detrimental to the visual amenity of the street scene. The proposed provision for
refuse/recycling storage is adequate. Details of such provision could have been
conditioned had the application not been recommended for refusal.

Renewable energy / Sustainability

The proposal does ensure that all the habitable rooms would be well served by natural
daylight. A condition could have been attached to any permission requiring the applicant
to submit details of how the scheme reduce carbon emissions and improve energy
efficiency in line with the Mayor's energy hierarchy.

Flooding or Drainage Issues

This application does not fall within a flood risk area and a sustainable urban drainage
system would have been sought by condition, had the application been recommended
favourably.

Noise or Air Quality Issues

This application for residential development within a residential area does not raise any
specific noise or air quality issues.

Comments on Public Consultations
Relevant planning concerns raised have been dealt with in the officer's report.

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 23



7.20 Planning Obligations

Policy R17 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) is concerned with securing planning obligations to supplement the
provision recreation open space, facilities to support arts, cultural and entertainment
activities, and other community, social and education facilities through planning
obligations in conjunction with other development proposals. These UDP policies are
supported by more specific supplementary planning guidance.

The Council's S106 Officer advises that this scheme would only generate a requirement
for an education contribution of £17,683.

As the application is being recommended for refusal, no detailed negotiations have been
entered into with the developer in respect of this contribution. As no legal agreement to
address this issue has been offered, the proposal fails to comply with Policy R17 of the
UDP Saved Policies (September 2007) and it is recommended the application should be
refused on this basis.

7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this site.
7.22 Other Issues

There are no other planning issues raised by this application.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware
of the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 24



9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

The proposal would have an excessive density, scale and bulk and would be of a poor
design so that it would appear as an incongruous addition within the street scene and fails
to harmonise with the spacious character of the surrounding area.

The property also fails to satisfy Lifetime homes standards and as no S106 Agreement
has been signed at this stage, the scheme fails to make a proportionate contribution
towards education provision. It is therefore recommended for refusal.

11. Reference Documents

National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012)

London Plan (July 2011)

Adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (July 2007)
HDAS: Residential Layouts (July 2007) & Accessible Hillingdon (January 2010)
Consultation responses

Contact Officer: Richard Phillips Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 25



\ ,
' ’

/// '
/ .

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the

Site Address

Gospel Oak
228 Swakeleys Road

Ickenham

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning,
Environment, Education
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2012 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Planning Application Ref: Scale
11246/APP/2012/1575 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
September

North Page 26

2012

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

LONDON




Agenda ltem 7

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address 48 PINN WAY RUISLIP

Development: Part two storey, part single storey rear extension and single storey side
extension involving installation of additional windows to side elevations,
involving demolition of existing conservatory to rear and existing attached
garage to side

LBH Ref Nos: 17220/APP/2012/1437

Drawing Nos: Location Plan/Block Plan
701.301-1
701.301-2
701.301-3
701.301-4
701.301-5

Date Plans Received: 13/06/2012 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 18/06/2012

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.1  Site and Locality

The application property is a three-bedroom detached house on the south western side of
Pinn Way, mid way between the junctions with St. Martin's Approach, to the northwest,
and Eastcote Road, to the southeast.

The street scene is residential in character and appearance comprising detached
properties. With the exception of No. 46 there have been no substantive alterations to the
original roof forms of the dwelling houses on this section of Pinn Way. The two storey
elements of the properties either side are spaced 4m and 5m apart respectively for Nos.
46 to the north and 50 to the south. No. 46 has a single storey rear extension projecting
approximately 4m from the rear and a single storey garage to the side facing No. 48 and
forming part of that boundary. No. 50 to the south has a rear single storey flat roofed
extension and large flat roofed dormer extension.

The application property has an attached flat roofed garage to the south, next to No. 50.
This projects from the front wall of the house slightly, but behind, the two storey bay
window. To the north, next to No. 46, is an attached single storey side, partially glazed,
extension. On the rear of the application property is a conservatory.

The site is within the Moat Drive Area of Special Local Character and within an
Archaeological Priority Area. The site lies within a Developed Area as identified in the
policies of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September
2007).

1.2 Proposed Scheme
This scheme is a revision of the previously refused scheme for a part two storey, part

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 27



single storey rear extension. The previous scheme was refused in respect of the two
storey rear extension, there were no grounds of refusal relating to the single storey side or
rear extensions.

The depth of this current scheme's two storey extension is identical to the previously
refused scheme at 4 metre from the original rear wall the house. However this scheme
differs with respect to the two storey element in two key aspects namely (i) by proposing a
subservient roof set 500mm below the main ridge and (ii) by proposing to set the 2 side
elevations to the two storey element of the rear extension 688mm in from the existing
flank walls of the house.

The new roof as in the previous scheme would be a hipped end.

The current scheme is identical in footprint, height and treatment of the roof and
elevations as the previous refused scheme with respect to the single storey side and rear
extension on the north west elevation with this side and rear extension 200mm wider in
footprint than the garage, finished with a parapet wall. The parapet wall would be 0.47m
above the height of the existing garage parapet. The single storey side extension would
projects 0.74m forward from the front wall of the main house, as does the existing garage.
No windows are proposed in the side of the extension, 2 roof lights are proposed identical
to the previous scheme.

As with the previous scheme 2 new obscure glazed first floor windows in the side walls of
the original house are proposed that would serve an ensuite bathroom and study fixed
closed below 1.7m above the internal floor they serve.

The other proposed single storey side extension on the south east elevation replacing an
existing utility room would be identical to the previous scheme with a lean to roof
containing two roof lights. The existing extension is set back by 4.68m from the edge of
the existing front porch and is 5.2m long, 2.3m to eaves and 2.68m to the highest part of
the lean-to roof. The proposed replacement would be set back by 3.4m from the edge of
the existing front porch and is 5.3m long, 2.1m to eaves and 2.8m to the highest part of
the lean-to roof. It would have a door to the front, as does the existing extension.

2 obscured glazed windows are proposed in the existing side elevation at ground floor
serving the hallway and downstairs wc and a fixed closed window on the first floor that
would be also be obscured glazed to serve an existing en-suite bathroom

Materials:

The materials of the ground floor at the rear are proposed to be wood cladding. Otherwise
the materials would match the existing property. This would comprise brick at the front, for
the garage conversion and white render with partial glazing for the replacement lean-to
and white render to sides and first floor rear extensions.

1.3 Relevant Planning History
17220/APP/2011/1920 48 Pinn Way Ruislip

Conversion of attached garage to side to habitable use and single storey rear extension
involving demolition of conservatory to rear

Decision Date: 14-10-2011 Approved Appeal:

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 28



17220/APP/2011/2804 48 Pinn Way Ruislip

Part two storey part first floor rear extension, part single storey rear/side extension, single storey
side extension (repositioning utility), installation of additional windows to side elevations,
involving demolition of (1) existing conservatory to rear, (2) existing attached garage to side and
(3) existing lean-to utility to side

Decision Date: 13-03-2012 Refused Appeal:08-JUN-12  Dismissed

Comment on Planning History

17220/APP/2011/1920 - Single storey side and rear extensions. Approved 14 October
2011.

17220/APP/2011/2804 - Part two storey part first floor rear extension, part single storey
rear/side extension, single storey side extension (repositioning utility), installation of
additional windows to side elevations, involving demolition of (1) existing conservatory to
rear, (2) existing attached garage to side and (3) existing lean-to utility to side. Refused
20 March 2012 for the following reason:

1. The proposed first floor rear extension, by virtue of its overall size, and in partuicular its
width would result in incongruous addition which would be detrimental to the architectural
composition, proportions and symetry of the existing building and would would be harmful
to the character and appearance of the Moat Drive Area of Special Local Character. The
proposal would therefore be contrary to policies BE5, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).

a subsequent appeal was dismissed on the 8th June 2012.
2, Advertisement and Site Notice

2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable

2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable
3. Comments on Public Consultations
EXTERNAL:

9 neighbouring properties and Ruislip Residents Association were consulted in writing. 7
written responses have been received. 6 letters of objection were received and 1 letter
stating no objection. The objection can be summarised as based on the following
grounds:

1) The scheme is bulky and out of character with the area.
2) The 2 storey extension is not subservient to the main house.

Case Officer: Both these points raised relate to the visual impact and appearance of the
scheme and are addressed in the body of this report.

The letter from a neighbour stating no objection considers the houses on the street were
well suited for growing families and provided the extension was being proposed to serve
this end it was not warranted to raise an objection to the scheme.

English Heritage Greater London Archaeology Advisory: No objection.

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 29



Ward Councillor: Requests that the application is reported to committee.
INTERNAL:
CONSERVATION AND URBAN DESIGN OFFICER:

| have considered the current set of drawings regarding the above application and confirm
that whilst a rear addition would be acceptable in principle, as currently proposed the
addition appears overly deep and oddly positioned on the building.

Ideally, the addition should be repositioned so that it covers about two thirds of the rear
elevation and sits either to the left or right of the elevation. My preference would be to sit it
over to the left to off balance the bulk of the single storey side addition. The elevation
would also benefit from the omission of the horizontal timber cladding, which appears to
cut the building in half visually. A slight set back at ground floor on the line of the flank wall
of the original house, would break up the massing of the elevation and give the building a
more traditional, vertical emphasis.

LANDSCAPE OFFICER:

Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape
features of merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is
appropriate.

- No trees or other significant landscape features will be affected by the proposal

- The loss of the garage equates to the loss of a parking space on the site. There remains
space for one off-street parking space on the existing driveway. There is no reference to a
requirement for additional parking. If additional parking is to be provided there will be a
loss of front garden (soft) space. The council seek to retain front gardens and recommend
a minimum area of 25%.

RECOMMENDATIONS: No objection, subject to the above considerations and condition
H10.

4. UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

Part 2 Policies:

BE3 Investigation of sites of archaeological interest and protection of
archaeological remains

BE5 New development within areas of special local character

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 30



BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

LPP 5.3 (2011) Sustainable design and construction

HDAS-EXT Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

The main planning consideration with respect to this application is whether this revised
scheme adequately addresses the previous reason of refusal and the Inspector's
reasoning for dismissing the appeal and whether it introduces any new reasons of refusal
on design grounds with regard to the potential impact on the character and appearance of
the existing property and the general visual amenity of the surrounding area. The
Inspector's own reasoning in dismissing the appeal needs to be given due material weight
and consideration in assessing whether this scheme is deemed acceptable.

The Council considered the previous scheme with its full width 1st floor extension, without
a proposed subservient roof combined with its overall scale would not harmonise with the
design, architectural composition and proportions of the existing dwelling. As such it was
considered it failed to be subordinate to the existing house and would present an
unacceptable form from an urban design point of view. Material to this is the location of
the property in an Area of Special Local Character (ASLC) and in Pinn Way, a street with
no similar extensions to the proposed rear extension. These factors give weight and
importance to ensure proposed new extensions harmonise with (and not dominate) the
design features and symmetry of the original building, or impact upon the character of the
street and the surrounding area or indeed set an unwelcome precedent in Pinn Way.

In terms of depth a 4m deep 2 storey rear extension on a detached property is consistent
with the Council's design guidance. However paragraph 6.4 of the Supplementary
Planning Document HDAS: Residential Extension states that two storey rear extensions
"should always be designed so as to appear subordinate to the original house." With
regard to this issue of appearing subordinate the previous scheme was considered
insufficiently subordinate in the design of the 2 storey rear extension given the proposed
scale and depth of the extension, the ridge of the roof not being set below the main ridge
of the house, the 2 storey extension being full width and it introducing an elongated roof
form at odds with the short length of main ridge (which is almost pyramidal on the existing
roof) and this was considered to represent an incongruous feature.

The Inspector shared the Council's view and elaborated further on the design
shortcomings in stating in paragraph 4 of his appeal decision:

"The controversial element of the proposals from the Council's perspective is the scale
and form of the rear extension which is being sought at first floor level; the authority
deems that because of its size this would unduly impact upon the composition,
proportions and symmetry of the existing building. To my eye the existing building has a
pleasantly proportioned principal roof form with the hips, degree of pitch and ridge height
and length, and the walls below it, coming together to make a comfortable contribution to
the wider scene. The appeal proposal would noticeably alter this to create a roof and
upper level with an unduly bulky nature and a key design quality of the existing home

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 31



would be lost by the sizeable rearward projection following the same roof and vertical wall
lines as the existing property. The scheme lacks subservience to the main dwelling and
thus would detract from it in both appearance and character terms. It would not represent
good quality design appropriate to the case in hand; it would be ungainly."

The current comparable scheme seeks to addresses theses issues and indeed goes
some way towards addressing these concerns by (i) setting the extension in from the
existing 2 storey flank walls of the property and (ii) by setting the ridge of the proposed 2
storey rear extension 500mm below the main roof ridge, in accordance with the Council's
adopted SPD. However on balance it is considered the revised scheme remains
unacceptable by failing to address sufficiently both the Council's and the Inspector's
design concerns with regard the scale of the 2 storey rear extension with (i) an insufficient
set in from the flank walls of the house and (ii) by failing to reduce the depth of the
extension. Furthermore it would introduce a large two storey built element centred on the
back of the existing rear wall of the house that is at odds with the existing asymmetrical
roof form, features and character of the property.

With regard to the proposed single storey elements to the scheme and the introduction of
the proposed windows in the existing flank walls of the house these are identical externally
to the previous scheme. These elements were considered acceptable in visual
appearance terms and amenity terms previously and this again equally applies with this
current application.

The proposed two storey rear extension would be sited some distance away from the
properties either side, and beyond the 45 degree sight line recommended in HDAS.
Issues of overshadowing were considered with the previous scheme and on balance the
level of overshadowing was considered such that it did not provide a reason for refusal.
This conclusion applies again with this application, given this scheme occupies a smaller
footprint and building envelope than the previous scheme, with its roof height lowered and
the flank wall set further away from the neighbouring properties. Accordingly the proposal
is acceptable with regard to Policies BE20 and BE24 of the UDP Saved Policies
September 2007.

There would be 380sg.m of rear garden remaining which would comply with HDAS
requirements and the property would retain off-street parking for one space, as per a
previous approval on the site, and could accommodate a second space where required in
the future. The proposal is considered to be acceptable with regard to Policies BE23 and
AM14 of the UDP Saved Policies September 2007.

CONCLUSION:

The amended scheme goes some way to addressing the previous reason with respect to
the two storey rear extension and the concerns of the Inspector on this aspect of the
previous scheme, by not proposing to build the two storey extension of the existing flank
walls of the house and by introducing a subservient roof. However and on balance this
revised scheme is considered to remain an unacceptable proposal by virtue of its overall
scale, size, and by the introduction of a proposed 2 story rear extension set to be built
symmetrically on the back of the property which would be at odds with the asymmetry of
the suburban house and detrimental to the architectural composition and proportions of
the existing house and thereby harmful to the character and appearance of the Moat Drive
Area of Special Local Character, contrary to Saved UDP Policies BE5, BE15 and BE19.

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 32



6. RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed first floor rear extension, by virtue of its overall scale, size, and position set
symmetrically on the back of the property would result an incongruous addition which
would be detrimental to the architectural composition, proportions and asymmetry of the
existing building and would be harmful to the character and appearance of the Moat
Drive Area of Special Local Character thereby contrary to Saved UDP Policies BES5,
BE15 and BE19.

INFORMATIVES

Standard Informatives

1 The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to
all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
(prohibition of discrimination).

2 The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to
the policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) set out below, and to all relevant material
considerations, including Supplementary Planning Guidance:

Policy No.
BE3 Investigation of sites of archaeological interest and protection of
archaeological remains
BE5 New development within areas of special local character
BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street
scene.
BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings
BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of
the area.
BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.
BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.
BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy
to neighbours.
AM14 New development and car parking standards.
LPP 5.3 (2011) Sustainable design and construction

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 33



HDAS-EXT  Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

Contact Officer: Gareth Gwynne Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 34



Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2012 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address

48 Pinn Way

Ruislip

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning,
Environment, Education
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

North Page 35

Planning Application Ref: Scale
17220/APP/2012/1437 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
September

2012

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36



Agenda Iltem 8

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address LAND AT WILLOW FARM (FIELD 3116) JACKETS LANE HAREFIELD

Development: Permanent use of the land as a gypsy and traveller caravan site and for the
keeping and breeding of horses with associated operational development,
including the siting of two mobile homes and a touring caravan, retention of
two stable blocks, and the formation of a garden area with the erection of a
garden shed, yard and paddock areas, parking spaces, landscaping and
fencing (Part retrospective application).

LBH Ref Nos: 57685/APP/2011/1450

Drawing Nos: MCA-1 (Location Plan)
Tree and Shrub Planting Schedule
Planning, Design and Access Statement
Un-numbered Existing Site Layout 2012
Proposed Site Layout
SOC1
SOC2
Agent's covering e-mail dated 23/5/12
SB2
Agent's email dated 17/5/12
Agent's email dated 18/5/12
SCO3
Un-numbered shed elevations
SB1
Sustainability Statement, dated May 2012

Date Plans Received:  14/06/2011 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 22/05/2012
Date Application Valid: 11/07/2011 17/05/2012

18/05/2012
06/06/2012
14/06/2011
23/05/2012
25/05/2012

DEFERRED ON 10th January 2012 FOR FURTHER INFORMATION .

Members may recall that this application was originally presented to the North Planning
committee on 10th January 2012, where Members initially deferred the application in order to
allow correct plans to be submitted and for further information to be submitted on the site
usage. Revised plans and further information was submitted and the application included on
the North Planning committee agenda for the 7th June 2012, but it was withdrawn from the
agenda by the Head of Planning due to the late submission of further information.

The officer's report has been amended accordingly to consider the latest submitted
information, revised plans and policy guidance contained in the NPPF (March 2012).

1. SUMMARY

This application seeks permanent planning permission for the use of the site as a gypsy
and traveller caravan site which has previously been granted twice at appeal, albeit on a

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 37



temporary basis.

The application site comprises a 0.25ha triangular shaped field located on the southern
side of Jackets Lane, approximately 700m to the south east of its junction with
Northwood Road. It is located within open countryside which forms part of the Green Belt
and a Countryside Conservation Area and also lies adjacent to a Nature Conservation
Site of Metropolitan or Borough Grade 1 Importance.

Two previous planning Inspectors did not consider that this site was suitable for a
permanent gypsy and traveller caravan site, the harm to the character and appearance of
the Green Belt and Countryside Conservation Area being too great. They have only been
prepared to grant temporary permission, mainly due to the compelling personal
circumstances of the applicant and his family. The previous Inspectors were also
concerned about the Local Planning Authority's lack of assessment of traveller's needs
within the UDP and no alternative sites being available in the vicinity so that the grant of
temporary permission would allow time for the Local Planning Authority to progress the
LDF and for appropriate site-specific allocations to be made.

Although the personal circumstances of the applicant and, to a more limited extent his
family, are still valid and there are still no alternative sites available, in considering the
previous application, the last Inspector considered that the matter was finely balanced so
that a 4 year temporary permission was considered acceptable so that at least the harm
to the Green Belt could be restricted by limiting the duration of the use and its identified
harm, in which time it was hoped the LDF could be progressed. The LDF has been
progressed but not to the extent that appropriate specific sites have been allocated. To
allow a further period would be to extend the duration of the harm so that it is considered
that on balance, the other factors, including the personal circumstances of the applicant
and his family would no longer justify a further extension of time with a continuation of the
harm.

Furthermore, this application would involve some operational development in that the
submitted plans show a slightly larger mobile home replacing the existing main mobile
home on site, although it would be turned through 90 degrees to be sited against the
site's north western boundary and an additional mobile home would be sited behind this,
replacing an unauthorised temporary building, separated by a small domestic shed. A
touring caravan would be sited to the rear of the second mobile home. Two stable
buildings are also shown at the rear of the site. The number of mobile caravans does add
to the proliferation of structures on site and would add to its built up appearance.

The Environment Agency also originally objected to the absence of an assessment
dealing with pollution risks of foul drainage. A Sustainability Statement has been
submitted which advises that the applicant would be prepared to provide a small package
treatment plant if permanent permission were to be granted which the Council's
Sustainability Officer advises would be acceptable and this could have been conditioned
if the application had been recommended favourably.

The scheme also now demonstrates that it will contribute towards sustainability
objectives.

The application is recommended for refusal as harmful development in the Green Belt
and detrimental to the landscape of the Countryside Conservation Area.

2, RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 38



1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The residential use and associated development is considered to represent inappropriate
development within the Green Belt in terms of the guidance contained in the National
Planning Policy Framework which is harmful by definition to its open character and
appearance. Furthermore, there are no very special circumstances provided or which are
evident which either singularly or cumulatively justify the permanent retention of the
residential use which would overcome the presumption against inappropriate
development in the Green Belt. The development is therefore harmful to the Green Belt
and the landscape of the Countryside Conservation Area, contrary to the National
Planning Policy Framework (including the accompanying Government Guidance
'Planning Policy for Traveller sites'), Policy 7.16 of the London Plan (July 2011) and
Policies 1.1, OL1 and OL15 of the adopted Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

2 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed mobile homes and associated residential structures are harmful to the
Green Belt and the landscape of the Countryside Conservation Area contrary to the
National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012), Planning policy for traveller sites
(March 2012), Policy 7.16 of the London Plan (July 2011) and Policies PT1.1, OL1 and
OL15 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all
relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies,
including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the
Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First
Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national

guidance.
LPP 3.1 (2011) Ensuring equal life chances for all
LPP 3.8 (2011) Housing Choice
LPP 5.14 (2011) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure
LPP 7.2 (2011) An inclusive environment
LPP 7.16 (2011) Green Belt
OoL1 Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new

development

OL4 Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings
OL15 Protection of Countryside Conservation Areas
NPPF National PLanning Policy Framework (March 2012)
PPTS Planning policy for traveller sites (March 2012)
BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.
BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 39



BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to

neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

EC3 Potential effects of development on sites of nature conservation
importance

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises a 0.25ha triangular shaped field located on the southern
side of Jackets Lane, a mainly single width track which links Northwood Road with Ducks
Hill Road, although the track is gated and bollarded towards its ends to prevent a through
route for vehicles. Vehicular access to the site is from Northwood Road. The site is
roughly halfway along the track's length, being approximately 470m to the south east of its
junction with Northwood Road and 620m to the north west of its junction with Ducks Hill
Road. The site lies within a valley surrounded by open fields and wooded areas, with
some linear residential development along the valley ridges. The immediately adjoining
fields are also in the applicant's ownership and are in use for the breeding and rearing of
horses.

The main residential building on site is located at the front of the site, along its north
western boundary and appears to comprise a mobile home which has been placed on a
brick base and has a tiled hipped roof and bay windows. Another temporary building has
been sited to the rear which also has a tiled roof and appears to provide residential
accommodation. Two caravans were also present on site at the time of the site visit and
two stable buildings have been erected towards the rear of the site with this part of the site
being used as a paddock area. A mature hedgerow forms the north western boundary and
an overhead national grid power line crosses the site. A number of public footpaths
surround the site, and meet outside its entrance, namely U10 which runs along Jackets
Lane from Northwood Road, R13 which crosses the field to the south east to join Jackets
Lane further to the east and U11 which runs along the north eastern boundary of the site.
Jackets Lane to the east of the site forms an ancient highway (bridle way) which is not
adopted.

The site forms part of the Green Belt, a Countryside Conservation Area and lies adjacent
to a Nature Conservation Site of Metropolitan or Borough Grade 1 Importance.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal is for the permanent use of the land as a gypsy and traveller caravan site.
Since the application was presented to committee in January 2012, amended plans and
information have now been submitted, including existing and proposed site plans and
elevational drawings of the existing and proposed mobile homes. These show a
replacement mobile home to measure 13.5m by 6m, being sited 2.5m from and parallel to
the north west boundary of the site, whereas the existing mobile home is sited at right
angles to it and at some 3.5m wide, is smaller. To the rear of this, and separated by a
garden area and a 4.5m by 2.5m garden shed would be sited a second 12.5m by 6m
mobile home with a similar relationship to the boundary which would replace the existing

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 40



square shaped temporary showroom type building. To the rear of this would be sited a
touring caravan. At the rear of the site, close to the north western boundary are two
existing 7.5m by 3m stable buildings sited on existing hardstanding. The plans also show
the two mobile homes connected to a septic tank.

A 3.5m square of concrete hardstanding is shown as existing at the side of the larger
mobile home. A total of five car parking spaces would be provided in front of the mobile
homes, on each side of thje garden. The rear of the site would provide a yard area, with
the south western part of the site providing a paddock, separated by a post and rail fence
which would also mark the south eastern boundary of the site. Tree planting and a new
hedge is also shown along the line of the new fencing.

A number of supporting documents have been submitted with the planning application,
namely:-

Planning, Design and Access Statement:

This states that the documents which must be taken into account in determining these
proposals include the Inspector's decision letter dated 20th June 2007; the Council's Local
Development Framework (LDF) including the core Strategy (2011) and any emerging
Land Allocations Development Plan Document(PDP); London's Gypsy and Traveller
Accommodation Assessment; the replacement London Plan (2009); the West London
Housing Partnership Study; the advice contained in Circular 01/2006 (until it is replaced)
and any Government guidance published before the applications are determined.

The statement then lists and briefly describes planning policy, as recorded by the
Inspector in his decision letter at the time of the previous appeal in June 2007. The
previous Inspector's conclusions on the planning policy position are described. The
statement then goes on to describe the current plan policy position.

The statement then refers to the need for gypsy caravan site provision generally in the
area in 2007 as referred to by the Inspector. The statement notes that at that time, 12
families were on the waiting list for a pitch at the Council's site at Colne Park and future
demand from family growth was expected. The Inspector noted that two bids in 2006 and
2007 for funding to improve and provide two additional pitches had been made. The
statement notes that that funding is no longer available. The Inspector also noted that the
Council's letting policy would preclude the Connors family from being considered for a
pitch. A West London survey of 7 boroughs (including Hillingdon) is also cited which
identified chronic overcrowding, lack of facilities and poor environmental quality at most
public sites. Furthermore, The neighbouring counties of Buckinghamshire and
Hertfordshire GTAAs found a need for some 100 additional permanent pitches in each
area whilst the Thames Valley Sub-Region, the GTAA indicated a requirement for 187
additional pitches for the period 2006 - 2011. The Inspector concluded that there was a
clear need for additional gypsy accommodation.

The statement considers that that need has not diminished over the intervening period
and the initial Replacement London Plan (2009) originally specified the level of need for
additional pitches in Hillingdon. It states that the prospects of the Connors family of
securing an alternative site were slim indeed and the situation has not improved. There is
still no suitable, affordable, available alternative site in the locality to which they could
relocate.

The statement then considers the occupation of the site and compares the 2007 situation

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 41



with that of the present. In 2007, the site was occupied by Mr Michael Connors (Snr.) and
his children, Michael (Jnr.), his wife Barbara, Luke (aged 17 years), Johnny (16) and Mary
(14). Since that time, Michael (Jnr.), his wife, Barbara and their two sons (Michael, aged 3
years and Tommy (3 months) have vacated the site for a traditional travelling lifestyle.
Luke has married and with his wife Anne and their daughter, Kathleen (9 months) is
shortly to move into a house. Mary and her partner are away from the site travelling. Mr
Connors eldest daughter Elizabeth (aged 22 years) has returned to the site with her two
children, Michael (18 months) and Ellie-Marie (4 months). Johnny has remained on site
and helps with the horse breeding.

The statement goes on advise that although the children have now completed their formal
education, the medical circumstances of Michael Connors (Snr.) remain a significant
material consideration. The Inspector previously attached significant weight to Mr
Connors' poor health and the good access this site afforded to Mount Vernon and
Harefield Hospitals. The statement advises that Mr Connors (Snr.) condition has
deteriorated further over the last 4 years. Also, Ellie-Marie suffers from a rare genetic
condition which leads to the build up of amino acid in the blood and brain which if left
untreated, can lead to severe learning difficulties. Ellie-Marie is seen regularly by
consultants at Great Ormond Street Hospital and Elizabeth is visited by a nurse and a
social worker on a twice-weekly basis.

The statement concludes by stating that the reduction in the number of households on the
site, with less domestic activity and paraphernalia and vehicle parking in the open has
reduced the impact of the site on the Green Belt. There is considerable scope for
structural planting to add to the planting that has already taken place. Permanent
permission would enable the site layout and landscaping to be finalised and fully
implemented.

Tree and Shrub Planting Schedule:

This details the essentially native hedge and tree planting, including Hawthorn, Hazel,
Holly and Blackthorn.

Sustainability Statement:

This describes the site as a two pitch Gypsy Traveller site and advises that Mr Connors
and his family have been living on the site in excess of 10 years without undue
sustainability complications which suggests the site is sustainable.

The report claims that the site has a planning history that goes back to 1986 and the site
was in part previously developed land used as a yard with extensive hardstanding and
portacabin.

The report then advises that the site is not within an area prone to flooding and a flood
risk assessment would not normally be required.

The report advises that efforts are being made to optimise energy consumption, with a
feasibility study being instigated on generating renewable energy on site, with wind and
solar resources being explored. The renewable energy potential of the site is currently
inconclusive. The report advises that where it is not currently intended to be fitted with
active solar devices, the mobile nature of the development would allow easy future
installation.

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 42



The report then advises of the availability of local shops, mainly located within Harefield
which is accessible by the No. 331 bus. The report then describes the site as a windfall
application and an ideal use of the site which has recently been used for commercial
purposes. A landscaping scheme could be drawn up with the LPA and the appearance of
the site would not be visually more inappropriate than the previous use which as seen
from a Google photo included ten vehicles and a static unit. With the stables sited where
the former unit was previously positioned, the appearance could be said to have improved
which will continue to be the case as the landscaping matures.

The report then advises that the applicant is willing to work with the LPA on the
specifications for a lighting scheme and trips wherever possible will by taken on foot
and/or public transport.

The report then goes on to advise that there is currently a septic tank installed on site into
which domestic waste fluid from the existing static caravan is discharged. The tank was
installed in 2002 and there is no history of any problems associated with its use or
maintenance. The relatively low lying nature of the site and the distance from existing
sewers makes connection to mains sewers prohibitively expensive and involves gaining
permission to lay pipes across land not in the applicant's ownership. The report accepts
that a small packet treatment plant could be a more acceptable solution and the applicant
has indicated that he would be prepared to install such a system if the application be
granted full planning permission if such a system deemed to be more acceptable. Which
ever system was considered the most appropriate, the existing static caravan would be
connected to the same method of disposal, thereby possibly improving the method of
disposal which would benéefit the area.

The report then goes on to advise that health care facilities are closely located to the site.

As regards ecology, a walk over study has been carried out but no evidence of protected
species was identified. There will be no impact on biodiversity or species variety as a
result of the proposal and none of the lands in the application site is suitable for wildlife
habitat. Existing hedges will be preserved and any gaps re-planted. Drainage ditches will
be maintained and wildlife encouraged.

The report then goes on to advise that the applicant would be happy to organise a
culturally specific photographic exhibition to encourage understanding of Gypsy Traveller
history as part of an on-going strategy of community involvement and there are plans to
mount an exhibition concerning this application if local partnerships can be found.

The report then advises that there is no evidence of any archaeology on site.

The report states that although any construction would be minimal, sustainable material
would be used where possible. Rainwater storage will feature on site, along with water
efficient fixtures and fittings where possible and available.

The report then advises that green house gas emissions will be limited by the low carbon
nature of living in a static caravan as opposed to a house and that touring caravans are
increasingly energy efficient, eco friendly and sustainable. A separate area for waste
recycling and home composting can be included. The report advises that the site would be
fully compliant with the latest government guidance: Planning policy for traveller sites,
although the statement only compares the site against the criteria of paragraph 11
concerning plan-making.

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 43



The statement continues that opportunities for crime will be minimised by the layout of the
site and vehicles will segregated from other modes of transport and there will be no
storage of hazardous materials.

The report states that noise and light pollution levels will be kept to a minimum during the
limited period in which construction would take place. Similarly, dust and air pollution
would be minimal. There would be no resultant pollution to ground or surface water from
the proposal and trees and hedges will be protected during the development period.

The report concludes by stating that it considers the site to be sustainable.
Supporting Information:

A confidential report from the Gypsy Council has also been submitted which details the
health needs of Michael Connors (Snr.) and Ellie-Marie and includes supporting
collaborative information from hospitals.

Supporting letters have also been received from health visitors and the Harefield
Children's Centre.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History

An application for the part retention and use of the site as a permanent private family
caravan site (6 pitches) (57685/APP/2002/2129) was refused on 24/04/2003.

Following an appeal against the serving of an enforcement notice, an application was
deemed to have been made for the use of land for the stationing of mobile homes and
caravans for residential purposes and the parking and storage of commercial vehicles
(57685/APP/2003/241). Following a Public Inquiry held in July and October 2003, the
enforcement notice was quashed and planning permission was granted on 13 January
2004 for the use of the land for a mixed use comprising the stationing of mobile homes
and caravans for residential purposes, the parking and storage of commercial vehicles
and the breeding and keeping of horses and associated operational development. The
permission was personal to the appellant, Mr Michael Connors, only and limited to a 2-
year temporary period. The Inspector also imposed a number of other planning conditions
including a condition allowing no more than one mobile home and one touring caravan or
caravanette/motor home to be stationed on the site at any time. The temporary
permission expired on 13 January 2006.

Two applications were submitted seeking to discharge condition 4(i) of the Inspector's
decision notice requiring details of the site layout to be submitted. The first of these
(57685/APP/2004/418) was refused on the 7 May 2004 on the grounds that the proposed
stables/barn, horse trailers, garden and shed for the mobile home would be detrimental to
the openness of the Green Belt. The second application (57685/APP/2004/1083) was
approved on the 27 May 2004 which showed a mobile home parallel with the northern
boundary of the site with a caravan behind.

An application for the renewal of planning permission granted on appeal dated 13/01/2004
(57685/APP/2006/120) was refused on 27/07/2006 for the following reasons:

1. The development is considered to represent inappropriate development within the
Green Belt in terms of the guidance contained in Paragraph 3.4 of Planning Policy
Guidance Note 2 (Green Belts). Furthermore, there are no very special circumstances

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 44



provided or which are evident which either singularly or cumulatively overcome the
presumption against inappropriate development in the Green Belt. The development is
therefore contrary to the aims of Policy OL1 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan.

2. The development, by reason of its siting, size, appearance and the additional traffic
generated, is prejudicial to the character, openness and visual amenities of the Green Belt
and Countryside Conservation Area. As such, it is contrary to the aims of Policies OL1
and OL15 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

Following an appeal and a public enquiry, permission was granted on 20/06/07 but again,
the permission was made personal to Mr Michael Connors (senior) and his resident
dependants, Mr Michael Connors (junior) and/or his wife Barbara and their resident
dependants, limited to a 4 year period and no more than 3 caravans (of which no more
than one shall be a static or mobile home) shall be stored at the site.

An application seeking to discharge details of the internal layout of the site was submitted
(57685/APP/2007/2898) but not determined.

The history of this site before its occupation by the applicant is somewhat obscure,
although it appears that any use made of the site was intermittent and did not benefit from
planning permission. From at least 1986, the site was used for the keeping of horse(s), at
which time hardcore had been brought onto the site, intended to provide a base for
stables and a car parking area. The owner was advised that permission would be
required, but no such application was received. In 1990, it appears that the site was being
used for the storage of plant and building materials/waste. The situation was monitored by
the Council's Enforcement Section and it appears that it was accepted that some of the
plant stored was associated with the farm. There are no further planning records after
January 1993, and an aerial photograph taken in 2002 shows that the site had been
vacated and largely overgrown with grass/scrub.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.1 To maintain the Green Belt for uses which preserve or enhance the open nature
of the area.

Part 2 Policies:

LPP 3.1 (2011) Ensuring equal life chances for all

LPP 3.8 (2011) Housing Choice

LPP 5.14 (2011) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure

LPP 7.2 (2011) An inclusive environment

LPP 7.16 (2011) Green Belt

OoL1 Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new development

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 45



oL4 Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings

OL15 Protection of Countryside Conservation Areas

NPPF National PLanning Policy Framework (March 2012)

PPTS Planning policy for traveller sites (March 2012)

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

EC3 Potential effects of development on sites of nature conservation importance

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 18th July 2011

5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

53 surrounding properties have been consulted, three site notices have been displayed (one
outside the site, the other two at each end of Jackets Lane) and the application has been
advertised in the local press as being a departure from the development plan. 9 responses
objecting to the proposal have been received, together with a petition with 64 signatories objecting
to the application and 3 responses in support of the development.

The petition states:

We the undersigned appeal against new planning application for the land at Willow Farm (3116)
Jackets Lane, Harefield, submitted by Mr Michael Connors, for Permanent use of land as Gypsy &
Traveller Caravan site, Hillingdon Ref. No. 57685/APP/2011/1450.

Letters of objection raise the following matters/concerns:-

(i) The field in question is farmland located within designated Green Belt and a Countryside
Conservation Area. The development for a permanent site would be out of keeping with the area,
detrimental to its beautiful character and will lead to a decline in the quality of the environment,

(i) The site is directly adjacent a Nature Conservation Site of Metropolitan or Borough Grade |
Importance

(iii) The development will spoil the beautiful views from surrounding properties of this lovely green
belt area, a primary factor for moving here,

(iv) Although the site is currently occupied, to approve the application to change the field into a
permanent site would set a legal precedent for further residential development on Green Belt land
(v) Current occupation already has a delirious impact on the character of the area including for
instance, significant amounts of litter such as household waste in close proximity to the field,

(vi) Is proposal meeting all covenants on the land?,

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 46



(vii) The biodiversity of the land will alter. The application provided no ecological survey and there
are no proposals to enhance, restore or add to features or habitats used by protected species,

(viii) There is no change of use on the planning application yet this will change status of land to a
legally habited site,

(ix) There is no indication of overall numbers on this site,

(x) What is the upper limit of tourers on this site and who will control this?'

(xi) Tourers need vehicles to tow them so where will these vehicles park as 5 parking spaces are
already used by applicant,

(xii) Is power being provided by grid or generators? This could have implications for noise,

(xiii) Access lane has only limited stabling traffic at present and is not suited for heavy traffic with
unspecified touring habitation,

(xiv) There is no formal provision for waste/rubbish/sewerage. How will waste management be
judged to be adequate when there is no upper limit for people living on site?

(xv) What has changed to justify the resubmission of the planning application?

(xvi) The planning process seems to be going on for an interminable length of time, with no
resolution in sight. Matter needs to be brought to an end so we go go back to living without this
constant anxiety,

(xvii) This proposal will violate our human rights and those of our neighbours

(xviii) Why should council grant permission this time when it has already been refused on more
than one occasion before

The responses in support of the proposal (albeit 2 are from people who do not reside within the
borough) make the following points:

(i) I have known the Connors for at least 10 years and visit Jackets Farm at least twice a week with
my two children who have great pleasure in seeing and riding the horses. The Connors are always
welcoming and very polite,

(ii) 1 have known Mr Connors for over 30 years and when he moved to Jackets Farm, | would see
him on a regular basis and still go there every other day. He is very helpful and very well mannered
and has a lot of time for people. | help him maintain Jacket Farm and we both share a great interest
in horses/

(iii) The applicants are a decent family and good neighbours to us at Battlers Wells Farm and the
site is kept tidy.

Nick Hurd MP:

| have been contacted by several constituents who are very concerned over the proposed planning
application for the land to be used as a permanent gypsy and traveller caravan site. The proposed
development will be in violation of Green Belt guidelines.

| share their concerns and also wish to register my objection to this planning application.

Ward Councillor: Requests that the application be heard at committee.

Northwood Residents' Association:

The Northwood Residents Association wishes to object to this proposal on the grounds that the
development would be on Green Belt land contrary to the UDP Part One Policies - notably Pt1.1
'To maintain the Green Belt for uses which preserve or enhance the open nature of the area'. In no
way could this proposal enhance the open nature.

Environment Agency:

We object to the proposed development as submitted because it involves the use of a non-mains

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 47



foul drainage system. No assessment of the risks of pollution to ground and surface waters have
been provided by the applicant. We recommend that planning permission should be refused on this
basis.

Reason

The site is in Source Protection Zone (SPZ) 1, which is an area of high ground floor vulnerability
which supplies an abstraction point for drinking water.

The application form indicates that foul drainage is to be discharged to a cesspool. The applicant
has not justified the use of non-mains drainage facilities in line with DETR Circular 03/99. It advises
that full and detailed consideration is given to the environmental criteria listed in Annexe A.

The application does not provide a sufficient basis for an assessment to be made of the risks of
pollution to ground and surface waters arising from the proposed development.

This poses significant risks to the environment which cannot be overcome by a condition.
Resolution

The applicant needs to complete and submit a satisfactory foul drainage assessment (see
http://www.environment-agency.gov.uk/reseaerch/planning/33368.aspx).

Within this the applicant needs to:

* Justify the use of a cesspool over preferred alternative means of foul disposal, for example, mains
foul sewage system, septic tank or package treatment plant in accordance with the hierarchy set
out in DETR Circular 03/99/WO Circular 10/99 and Building Regulations Approved Document H.

* Demonstrate London Clay in the area is thick enough and provides enough coverage to protect
the drinking water aquifer beneath.

Thames Water:
Waste Comment

Thames Water would advise that with regard to sewerage infrastructure we would not have any
objection to the above planning application.

Water Comment

With regard to water supply, this comes within the area covered by the Veolia Water Company.

Internal Consultees
TREES AND LANDSCAPE OFFICER:

LANDSCAPE CONTEXT: The site lies within an undulating valley landscape characterised by a
mosaic of woodland and farmland, with field boundaries defined by hedgerows with trees. It is
currently occupied by two mobile homes, a caravan and shed which are situated within a yard and
garden. The site is enclosed by a mix of post and rail fences, with some mature and some young
hedgerows with trees. This area, in the north of the Borough, is identified within London's Natural
Signatures as the 'Ruislip Plateau Natural Landscape Area’, as designated by Natural England.

The site lies within an area of designated Metropolitan Green Belt, at the junction of Jackets Lane

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 48



(an Ancient Highway) and three statutory footpaths (ref. U10, U11 and R13), which link Ducks Hill
Road (Northwood) to the east and Harefield to the west. Hillingdon's draft Landscape Character
Assessment includes a detailed description and appraisal of this area which it refers to as 'South
Harefield Wooded Undulating Farmland' (ref.LCA D1). Several parcels of land close to the site are
designated Nature Conservation Sites of Metropolitan or Borough Grade 1 Importance. There are
no Tree Preservation Orders on, or close to, the site, nor does it fall within a designated
conservation Area.

PROPQOSAL: The proposal is to extend a temporary permission to a permanent use of the land as
a gypsy and traveller site. The application includes a drawing which shows the existing field hedge
along the north-west boundary and a new native hedgerow with trees along east boundary.

LANDSCAPE CONSIDERATIONS: Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of
topographical and landscape features of merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping
wherever it is appropriate.

* No trees or other landscape features will be affected by the proposal. However, the location of the
site, which is on a hillside, is clearly visible from Jackets Lane and the vantage points from footpath
ref. R13 to the east. Approaching the site from the west, along footpath ref. U10, intervening
hedges and woodland effectively screen the site from view, when the vegetation is in leaf. There is
litle scope for providing additional planting to screen views across the valley in what is
predominantly open countryside.

* One of the five purposes of including land in the Green Belt is to assist in safeguarding the
countryside from encroachment (PPG2). The visual effect of retaining the mobile homes, caravan
and outbuildings has an urbanising influence in an area which is predominantly agricultural and
pastoral. Again it is not considered that the impact of the development on the character and
appearance of the surrounding landscape can be overcome by landscape conditions.

RECOMMENDATIONS: For the reasons above, | object to this proposal. The retention of the
mobile homes and ancillary buildings/caravans is visually intrusive and inappropriate in the Green
Belt. They fail to harmonise with the landscape character and visual amenity of the area.

SUSTAINABILITY OFFICER:

Drainage - Use of Septic Tank
| object to the use of a septic tank for the proposed development.

It is a slight improvement from the original scheme which proposed a cesspit. However, there is no
information provided to demonstrate that a septic tank will work in this location. | therefore object to
the proposed development due to the lack of information on drainage:

Circular 03/99 provides a hierarchy for foul drainage requirements of new development. Circular
03/99 states:

This Circular provides advice on the exercise of planning controls on non-mains sewerage and
associated sewage disposal aspects of future development so as to avoid environmental, amenity
or public health problems which could arise from the inappropriate use of non-mains sewerage
systems, particularly those incorporating septic tanks.

The hierarchy is as follows:
- Connection to Public Sewer
- Use of Package Treatment Plant

- Use of Septic Tank
- Use of Cesspool only in exceptional circumstances

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 49



The site is in rural location, and the connection to a mains sewer may be uneconomical for the
development; however this still needs to be investigated as part of a wider non-mains drainage
assessment. Circular 03/99 states:

If, by taking into account the cost and/or practicability, it can be shown to the satisfaction of the
local planning authority that connection to a public sewer is not feasible, a package sewage
treatment plant incorporating a combination of treatment processes should be considered.

A package treatment plant is a more advanced form of treatment than a septic tank and should
always be seen as a preferred solution. Nonetheless, the circular proceeds to state:

Only if it can be clearly demonstrated by the developer that the sewerage and sewage disposal
methods referred to in paragraphs 3 and 4 [i.e. mains drainage or package treatment plant] above
are not feasible, taking into account cost and/or practicability, should a system incorporating septic
tank(s) be considered and proposed if appropriate

The use of a cess pit with the previously approved temporary permissions is considered
acceptable. However, this application is now for a permanent siting, which requires reconsideration
of the preferred method of drainage in line with Circular 03/99.

A septic tank provides no treatment to foul water, relying on gravity to remove solids. The
remaining foul liquid discharge is then directed to a soakaway. In this area, soakaways may not be
appropriate, which means that raw sewage will either discharge to nearby watercourses creating a
pollution incident, remain at ground level creating a health issue, or flow directly to groundwater
creating a pollution incident. For these proposals, a package treatment plant may be the best
alternative to a mains sewer. However the site is within a source protection zone 1. The
groundwater in this area is highly vulnerable to pollution and therefore any discharges needs to be
carefully considered.

The applicant needs to carry out a full foul drainage assessment in accordance with C03/99 that
considers the use of a package treatment plant. It should consider the requirements of C03/99 and
in particular it should also provide details on:

. If the receiving environment is suitable
. What level of sewage treatment is required
. How the groundwater can be protected.

Ecology

The site is designated as a Site of Importance for Nature Conservation. The applicant needs to
respect this designation and the site, which performs a valuable role to play in the ecological setting
of the Borough. The change from temporary siting of existing mobile homes to permanent will have
a long term impact on the Grade 1 SINC. The applicant should therefore be required to contribute
to the enhancement of the SINC.

The proliferation of development on the SINC beyond that already approved, and these proposals
would have a significant effect.

Sustainability

The applicant should be required to submit a sustainability statement demonstrating how the site
can contribute to sustainable development. In particular the statement shall demonstrate how the
applicant shall reduce potable water demand (London Plan Policy 5.15), reduce energy demands
(London Plan Policies 5.3 and 5.2) and promoting ecology (London Plan Policy 7.19).

Comments on Sustainability Statement:

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 50



| have objections to the proposed development based on the information submitted and previous
comments.

The outstanding concern relates to foul drainage.

If the Council were to approve another temporary permission then | would be satisfied that a septic
tank would be an appropriate drainage system. However, this is not suitable for the long term. | am
aware that the development has had a series of temporary permissions, which heightens the
concerns of any problems with the existing septic tank. If temporary permission is granted, then any
further extensions of time would render the use of a septic tank inappropriate.

If the Council is to give a permanent permission then the existing septic tank must be removed and
replaced with a package treatment plant. This will need to be conditioned as part of any permanent
approval.

| am satisfied with the rest of the information in the sustainability appraisal.
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH OFFICER:
| do not wish to object to this proposal.

| have spoken with the Environmental Health Officer in Private Sector Housing Enforcement Team
about this proposal and am advised that the site would need to comply with model site licence
conditions under the Caravan Sites and Control of Development Act 1960.

I note that foul drainage is proposed to be made to a cesspit.

Should planning permission be granted, please add the construction site informative.
7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

No objections are raised to the horse rearing and breeding element of the use of the site
and associated stables which appear rural in scale and appearance and have been
discretely sited. This element of the use of the site would be akin to an agricultural use
and would be appropriate within the Green Belt, maintaining its open character.

The Inspectors in considering the two previous appeals (App. Nos. 57685/APP/2003/241
and 2006/120 refer), both considered the use of the site for a gypsy and traveller caravan
site represented inappropriate development within the Green Belt.

The two previous Inspectors also both considered that the use was only acceptable on a
temporary basis, given the personnel circumstances of the family, given the lack of an
adequate assessment of gypsy and traveller needs and plot/pitch provision in the UDP.

In considering the latest appeal (App. No. 57685/APP/2006/120), the Inspector in his
decision letter dated 20th June 2007 at paragraph 15 stated:

'Inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful to the Green Belt (PPG2, paragraph
3.2); such definitional harm is accepted by the appellant. In addition, | consider harm
would arise from the presence on site of a mobile home and touring or other caravans and
any ancillary buildings such as a shed. The site is in an area of predominantly open
countryside and so the items already on site or sought detract from the area's openness
(which paragraph 1.4 of the PPG notes is the most important attribute of Green Belts).
The developed, occupied appearance of site results in encroachment into the countryside

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 51



and some harm to the Green Belt's visual amenities.'
The Inspector goes on in paragraph 18 that:

'"The appeal site is in attractive, undulating countryside, the landscape quality of which is
recognised by its CCA designation (which remains part of the development plan and so |
attach little weight to speculation about its continuance). The site is clearly visible from its
Jackets Lane entrance and its various structures can also be seen particularly readily
across the valley from the south-east end of Jackets Lane (and, | would expect, from
some of the dwellings in that area).’

The Inspector concludes the assessment on the impact upon the character and
appearance of the area by stating that the proposed development would cause
unacceptable harm to the character and appearance of the surrounding area.

The Inspector then goes on to assess other considerations. He states in paragraph 23
that:

"The previous appeal Inspector deplored the absence of an appropriate gypsy policy in the
UDP and found the Council's failure to undertake a proper quantitative assessment of the
accommodation needs of gypsies to be a matter of serious concern. The UDP policy
position is unchanged and does not conform with the more recent London Plan.'

At this time, policy 3A.11 of the London Plan (February 2004) stated that boroughs
should, in co-ordination with other boroughs, assess the accommodation needs of gypsies
and travellers and review pitch capacity and formulate policies to protect existing sites,
establish criteria for new sites and identify them where shortfalls occur.

As regards the Local Development Framework which will replace the UDP, the issue of
gypsy and traveller pitch provision is addressed in emerging Core Strategy Policy H3
(Gypsy and Traveller Pitch Provision). This sets broad criteria for the location of sites to
accommodate the specific needs of the travelling community. Any policy on gypsy and
traveller pitch provision would need to be in general conformity with the London Plan.

The 2004 London Plan has been replaced and policy 3.8 of the London Plan (July 2011)
now advises that whilst working with the Mayor, boroughs should ensure that 'the
accommodation requirements of gypsies and travellers (including travelling show people)
are identified and addressed in line with national policy, in co-ordination with neighbouring
boroughs and districts as appropriate.'" This has undergone various revisions prior to the
replacement London Plan being adopted in July 2011. For instance, in October 2009, the
then Policy 3.9 of the Draft Replacement London Plan stated that Hillingdon should
provide 22 traveller pitches between 2007-2017. In March 2010, the Mayor proposed
minor alterations to this policy with Hillingdon's pitch provision target being reduced to 7
pitches. In September 2010, Further Minor Alterations to then policy 3.9 were published by
the Mayor, stating that 'boroughs are best placed to assess the needs of these groups...".
It was therefore proposed to remove borough specific pitch provision targets from the
policy. In March 2011, the Examination in Public (EIP) Panel Report was published and
proposed the inclusion of sub-regional targets for gypsy and traveller pitch provision in
policy 3.9. In July 2011, the Mayor adopts the London Plan and chooses not to accept the
Inspector's recommendations on policy 3.9. The provisions of the policy are thus
consistent with the September 2010 Proposed Minor Alteration.

As a result of the changes to the Mayor's policy on Gypsy and Traveller Provision, policy

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 52



H3 in the Submission version of Hillingdon's Core Strategy states that the Council will
work with the Mayor to ensure that needs are identified and the accommodation
requirements for gypsy and traveller groups are addressed locally and in line with national

policy.

In March 2012, the Government adopted the National Planning Policy Framework. At
paragraph 79, this advises that the 'Government attaches great importance to Green
Belts. The fundamental aim of Green Belt policy is to prevent urban sprawl by keeping
land permanently open; the essential characteristics of Green Belts are their openness
and their permanence.' Paragraph 87 goes on to state 'As with previous Green Belt policy,
inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful to the Green Belt and should not be
approved except in very special circumstances.' The guidance adds in the next paragraph
that such circumstances will not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by
reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm, is clearly outweighed by other
considerations.

Following the production of a Consultation Paper on Planning for Traveller Sites in April
2011, the Government has produced Planning policy for traveller sites in March 2012
which is intended to be read in conjunction with the NPPF. Following on from paragraph
159 in the NPPF which advises that LPAs should have a clear understanding of housing
needs in their areas and address the need for all types of housing, this document stresses
the need for the fair and equal treatment of travellers. Paragraph 4 advises of the
Government's aims in respect of traveller sites, and includes the need for LPAs to make
their own assessments of traveller need and working collaboratively, develop fair and
effective strategies to meet need through the identification of land for sites. However, it
also states that plan-making and decision-taking should protect Green Belt from
inappropriate development.

Paragraph 14 unequivocally states:

'Inappropriate development is harmful to the Green Belt and should not be approved,
except in very special circumstances. Traveller sites (temporary or permanent) in the
Green Belt are inappropriate development.'

Therefore, in terms of the latest national and emerging local policy, there is nothing to
suggest that this site should now be considered as being more suited to provide a
permanent gypsy/traveller site.

Turning to the issue of very special circumstances, the two previous Inspectors were only
prepared to grant temporary permission on this site given the lack of any alternative
gypsy/traveller sites in the vicinity and the compelling personal circumstances of the
applicant and his family. In considering the last appeal (App. No. 57685/APP/2006/120),
the Inspector noted that during the course of the Inquiry, the Council and the appellant
reached an agreement that the appropriate way forward would be to grant a temporary
consent for 4 years, subject to conditions, so that the level of need for gypsy sites could
be identified and properly addressed through the Local Development Framework (LDF).
The applicants argue that as a result of this agreement, the appeal ended prematurely
and that although it was ultimately his decision, the Inspector had little choice in that
decision and the reasoning in the decision letter therefore is more of an explanation of the
temporary permission than his own conclusions. This agreement was clearly taken into
account by the Inspector. However, there is nothing in the decision letter to suggest that
he was reluctant to make the decision he did and to suggest that the Inspector might
possibly have made a different decision without the agreement is pure speculation. The

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 53



LPA therefore has to take the decision at face value.

Although there are still no alternative gypsy/traveller sites available in the vicinity of the
application site, progress is being made to ensure that the emerging LDF does conform to
the London Plan (July 2011) and the NPPF and will involve appropriate assessment and
specific site allocation (if appropriate). However, the numerous changes to the London
Plan has delayed this process.

As regards the personal circumstances of the applicant and his family, in considering the
last appeal, the Inspector noted that Michael Connors (Snr.) continues to suffer from
chronic ill health requiring numerous hospital (Hillingdon or Mount Vernon) visits and
surgery consultations and he and other family members are registered with the Harefield
Health Centre. The children also had health problems, but the Inspector noted that the
children's below average health is not untypical of the gypsy community and although
access to health services would be more difficult with no settled base, this did not provide
a compelling reason by itself for the occupation of the site. However, the Inspector did
attach significant weight to the benefit of stability for Michael (Snr.) close to medical
facilities where staff are familiar with his condition.

The Inspector also considered the educational needs of the children and noted that Mary
was at an important stage in her education at Harefield Community College and although
there was nothing to suggest that her needs could not be met as well elsewhere,
unplanned moves would be particularly disruptive at such a stage and so some weight
was attached to this.

The last Inspector concluded:

'... the family's needs as gypsies are not unusual. Nor do | consider permanent residence
on the appeal site to be essential to look after the horses.

On the other hand, the plan policy shortcomings are a supporting matter and there is a
general need for additional gypsy accommodation in the area, notwithstanding the lack of
a London GTAA. The medical needs of Mr Michael Connors (senior) and the education
needs of Mary are particularly significant. There is no known available, affordable or
suitable alternative land for the family to move to and, in light of this, the interference in
the family's human rights would have a disproportionate effect. When these matters are
taken in combination and with the main parties' suggestion of a temporary permission, |
conclude that the harm to the Green Belt and the surrounding area's character and
appearance for only a limited time period would be clearly outweighed by these other
considerations. Consequently, very special circumstances exist to justify the inappropriate
development in the Green Belt.'

As regards the current personal circumstances of the applicant and his family, the
submitted Planning, Design and Access Statement advises that:

'In 2007, the site was occupied by Mr Michael Connors (Snr.) and his children, Michael
(Jnr.) and his wife, Barbara, Luke (aged 17 years), Johnny (16) and Mary (14). Since that
time, Michael (Jnr.), his wife and their two sons (Michael aged 3 years and Tommy (3
months) have left the site and have taken up the traditional travelling lifestyle. Luke has
married and with his wife Anne and their daughter, Kathleen (9 months) is shortly to move
into a house. Mary and her partner Michael are away from the site travelling. Mr Connor's
eldest daughter, Elizabeth (aged 22 years) has returned to the site with her two children,
Michael (18 months) and Ellie-Marie (4 months). Johnny (20) has remained on site and

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 54



helps his father with their horse breeding business.

As regards the families' personal circumstances, although the children have now
completed their formal education, the medical circumstances of Michael Connors (Snr.)
remain a significant material consideration. Evidence of Mr Connors' chronic ill health was
before the inquiry in 2007 and his condition has deteriorated further over the past 4 years.
The Inspector attached significant weight to Mr Connors' poor health and his not
infrequent need for immediate access to facilities at both Mount Vernon and Harefield
Hospitals (paragraphs 37 and 38). In addition to Mr. Connors' health problems, Elizabeth's
daughter Ellie-Marie suffers from Phenylketonuria (PKU), a rare genetic condition present
from birth. The body is unable to break down an amino acid called Phenylalanine which
builds up in the blood and brain. If left untreated high levels of this chemical can disrupt
the normal development of a child's brain and can cause severe learning difficulties. A
strict dietary regime and constant monitoring are necessary especially in early life to
ensure that the condition is controlled. Ellie-Marie is seen regularly by consultants at Great
Ormond Street Hospital and Elizabeth is visited by a nurse and a social worker on a twice-
weekly basis.'

A confidential report has also been submitted from the Gypsy Council which details the
health needs of Michael Connors and Ellie-Marie and includes supporting collaborative
information from hospitals. In particular, the evidence submitted substantiates the
difficulties Mr Connor would experience due to his medical condition from having to
resume a travelling lifestyle and the importance to Ellie-Marie of having a stable base so
her dietary requirements can more easily be met. This involves a special low
phenylalanine diet which avoids many staple food types, and an artificial amino acid
supplement which is quite unpalatable and time consuming to encourage a child to take.
Also, Ellie-Marie's diet has to be monitored carefully, with weekly blood samples sent off
for analysis and results conveyed back to the family with possible discussions and
modification of her diet.

Supporting letters have also been received from health visitors and the Harefield
Children's Centre. These also substantiate the health care needs of Ellie-Marie and advise
that the site is close to Elizabeth's mother, Kathleen Connors who is able to provide
support in the care of Ellie-Marie and also help to her other daughter, Mary following the
birth of her first baby. Both sisters attend the Harefield Children's Centre. The supporting
information stresses the detrimental impact that would be caused by the disruption of the
relationship and trust the family has built with health professionals by having to move from
the site. However, officers consider that the healthcare needs of Ellie-Marie do not mean
that it is imperative for her to stay at this site.

Therefore the personal circumstances that the previous Inspector considered warranted
very special circumstances to outweigh the harm to the Green Belt on a temporary basis
in the case of Mr Michael Connors (Snr.) are still just as relevant, whilst the education
needs of Mary are no longer a factor. The special dietary and monitoring needs of Ellie-
Marie are not insurmountable with a travelling lifestyle and therefore justify limited weight
being attached. As a result, it is considered that the personal circumstances of the family
as a whole are a material consideration, but officers are not convinced that the health
needs of Mr Michael Connors (Snr.) are now so significant that they justify a permanent
approval.

However, this has to be weighted against the continuing occupation of the site. The last

Inspector made his assessment in 2007, five years after the use appears to have
commenced in 2002 and after only a two year temporary permission for the site had been

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 55



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.06

7.07

granted by the original Inspector. Now the site has been occupied for over 9 years, with
the extension of harm to the Green Belt that the use entails. The last Inspector noted that
a temporary permission would not lessen the harm to the Green Belt, but by limiting the
use's duration, the harm would be restricted and on this basis was prepared to only grant
a 4 year temporary permission. This application seeks permanent permission but even
considering the compromise of granting a further temporary permission, it is considered
that on balance, the overall duration of harm to the Green Belt would no longer be
outweighed by other factors, including the families personal circumstances, given that
previous Inspectors have made it clear that the site is not suited for permanent retention.

The proposal does also involve operational development, which would involve siting
another mobile home on this site, replacing an unauthorised temporary showroom type
structure. The siting of mobile home through 90 degrees so that it would be sited close to
the boundary hedge is welcomed as it would be afforded greater screening (although its
current sited has not been authorised). However, it is considered that allowing an increase
in the number of mobile homes on site and other residential structures would add to the
urban appearance of the site, compounding the harm to the Green Belt (it is noted that
both of the previous Inspectors considered that it was necessary to restrict the number of
mobile/static homes on this site to one).

The proposal therefore represents inappropriate development, the permanent retention of
which is harmful by definition, to the Green Belt and the Countryside Conservation Area,
contrary to the NPPF (March 2012), Planning policy for traveller sites (March 2012), Policy
7.16 of the London Plan (July 2011) and Policies 1.1, OL1 and OL15 of the adopted
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this application.
Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

This has been considered in Section 7.01 above.
Environmental Impact

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The last Inspector considered that the site was clearly visible from Jackets Lane and the
site's various structures where clearly visible across the valley. There has been no change
in conditions on site to suggest that this is no longer the case and this application seeks
permission for the siting of additional residential structures. The Inspector then went on to
consider the use of landscaping but considered that this was unlikely to overcome the
harm, particularly in nearer views. He concluded that the residential element was harmful
to the special character of the landscape of the Countryside Conservation Area.

The Council's Tree and Landscape Officer has carried out a more recent site inspection
and assessment of the current proposal and considers that the retention of mobile homes,
caravan and outbuildings has had an urbanising influence in an area which remains
predominantly agricultural and pastoral. He concurs with the previous Inspector that the
impact of the development on the character and appearance of the landscape could not
be overcome by landscape conditions.

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 56



7.08

7.09

710

7.11

712

713

714

715

7.16

717

Impact on neighbours

The nearest property to the application site is known as the Bungalow, which is sited on
the southern side of Jackets Lane, just over 300m from the application site. From this
direction, the site would largely be screened by the boundary hedge and given the single
storey height of the proposed mobile homes, the buildings or the use would not unduly
affect their residential amenities. From the other direction, the site is more exposed, and
the site can be glimpsed from residential properties on Iveagh Close. However, this
distance, at over 400m would ensure that their amenities would not be materially affected.

The previous Inspector also did not consider that the impact of the development upon
neighbouring properties, whilst also having regard to the human rights of the appellant,
was not so significant to justify a refusal of permission.

Living conditions for future occupiers

The Council's guidelines relating to internal floor space standards are not applicable to
mobile homes and caravans.

The area around the mobile home, temporary structure and caravans functions as
informal amenity space and the submitted plan shows a shared area of amenity space
between the two mobile homes which is considered of an acceptable size to address the
families amenity space requirements.

Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

There is adequate parking and vehicular access to the site. No objections are therefore
raised to the development on highway grounds, in accordance with Policies AM7 and
AM14 of the adopted Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Urban design, access and security

The relevant issues have been considered in other sections of this report.
Disabled access

Not applicable to this application.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

There are no protected trees on site. The application site is also sufficiently separated
from the adjoining Grade | Site of Nature Conservation Importance so that its ecology
would not be adversely affected.

Sustainable waste management

Appropriate provision could be made on site for the storage of waste and recycling which
could have been conditioned if the application had of been recommended for approval.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Policies 5.2 and 5.3 of the London Plan (July 2011) require development proposals to
make the fullest contribution towards minimising carbon dioxide emissions and to achieve
the highest standards of sustainable design and construction respectively. Policy 5.15
expects development proposals to protect and conserve water supplies and resources
and policy 7.19 to protect, enhance, create, promote and manage London's biodiversity.

This application is for permanent use of the site. The submitted Sustainability Statement
adequately demonstrates that the site and proposed development could make a
proportionate contribution to sustainability objectives. On this basis, the Council's
Sustainability Officer does not raise an objection to the proposal on sustainability grounds.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 57



7.18

719

7.20

7.21

7.22

Policy 5.14 of the London Plan (July 2011) requires development proposals to have
adequate wastewater infrastructure capacity and advises that proposals which adversely
affect water quality should be refused. Circular 03/99 provides additional guidance to that
in PPG23: Planning and Pollution Control on foul drainage requirements.

The original submission showed the two mobile homes connected to a cesspool. The
Environment Agency advise that the site is in Source Protection Zone 1, which is an area
of high ground water vulnerability which supplies an abstraction point for drinking water.
They object to the proposal as no assessment of the risks of pollution to ground and
surface waters has been provided. The use of non-mains drainage facilities needs to be
justified, in line with DETR Circular 03/99.

Revised plans now show the two mobile homes connected to a septic tank and the
Sustainablity Statement advises that a septic tank was in fact installed on site in 2002 into
which domestic waste fluid discharges. Furthermore, the Sustainability Statement advises
that if permanent permission were to be granted, the applicant would replace the septic
tank with a small package treatment plant.

The Council's Sustainability Officer advises that septic tanks are only suitable on a
temporary basis and that as the site has had a series of temporary permissions, concerns
regarding the maintenance of such equipment are heightened. If temporary permission is
granted, then any further extension of time would render the use of a septic tank
inappropriate. If the Council is to give a permanent permission, then the existing septic
tank must be removed and replaced with a package treatment plant.

It is considered that the provision of a replacement package treatment plant could have
been conditioned if the application had of been recommended favourably.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Comments on Public Consultations

The material planning issues raised by the individual objectors have been considered in
the main report. The petition against the proposal and the comments in support are noted.
Planning Obligations

Not applicable to this application.
Expediency of enforcement action

The use of the site as a gypsy/traveller caravan site represents inappropriate development
that is harmful to the character and appearance of the Green Belt and the Countryside
Conservation Area. To allow the use to continue contravenes NPPF (March 2012),
Planning policy for traveller sites (March 2012), Policy 7.16 of the London Plan (July 2011)
and Policies 1.1, OL1 and OL15 of the adopted Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007). If this application is refused, then a further report on the possibility of
serving an enforcement notice will be put before committee.

Other Issues

There are no other relevant planning issues raised by this application.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 58



In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

The two previous Inspectors did not consider that this site was suitable for a permanent
gypsy and traveller caravan site, the harm to the character and appearance of the Green
Belt and Countryside Conservation Area being too great. They have only been prepared
to grant temporary permission, mainly due to the compelling personal circumstances of
the applicant and his family. The previous Inspectors were also concerned about the Local
Planning Authority's lack of assessment of traveller's needs within the UDP and no
alternative site's being available in the vicinity. They considered that a temporary
permission would enable the Local Planning Authority to progress the LDF and
appropriate site-specific allocations to be made.

Although the personal circumstances of the applicant and his family are still valid and
there are still no alternative sites available, in considering the previous application, the
Inspector noted that the matter was finely balanced so that a 4 year temporary permission
was justified so that at least the harm to the Green Belt could be restricted by limiting the
duration of the use, in which time it was hoped the LDF could be progressed. The LDF
has been progressed but not to the extent that specific sites have been allocated. To allow
a further period would be to extend the duration of the harm so that it is considered that
on balance, the other factors, including the personal circumstances of the applicant and
his family would no longer justify a further extension of time with a continuation of the
harm.

The harm would also be compounded by the proposed additional mobile home that would
replace the unauthorised temporary showroom building.

The application is recommended for refusal.

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 59



11. Reference Documents
NPPF (March 2012)
Planning policy for traveller sites (March 2012)

London Plan (July 2011)
Adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)

HDAS: Residential Layouts & Accessible Hillingdon
Consultation responses

Contact Officer: Adrien Waite Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 60



Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2011 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address

Harefield

Land at Willow Farm
Jackets Lane

LONDON BOROUGH

OF HILLINGDON
Planning,
Environment, Education
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

North Page 61

Planning Application Ref: Scale
57685/APP/2011/1450 1:2,000
Planning Committee Date
November

2011

TILLINGDON

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 62



Agenda ltem 9

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address 91-97 HIGH ROAD ICKENHAM

Development: Part-retrospective application for the retention of 2 x 4 bedroom flats above
91 and 93 High Road Ickenham and the retention of an existing external
metal staircase accessed from the side of No. 97, plus the addition of a new
staircase accessed from the rear yard to serve all the flats above 91-97 High
Road, Ickenham.

LBH Ref Nos: 14964/APP/2011/2969

Drawing Nos: PL/VP/1616-02 Rev.
PL/VP/1616-03 Rev.
PL/VP/1616-04 Rev.
PL/VP/1616-05 Rev.
PL/VP/1616-06 Rev.
PL/VP/1616-01 Rev.
PL/VP/1616-07
1616-07 Rev. B received 4 September
Design and Access Statement received 13-2-2011

m>»>wom

Date Plans Received:  06/12/2011 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 20/02/2012
1. SUMMARY

This application seeks part retrospective permission for the retention of 2 x 4 bedroom
flats above 91 and 93 High Road, Ickenham and the retention of an existing external
metal staircase accessed from the side of No. 97, plus the addition of a new staircase
accessed from the rear yard to serve all the flats above 91-97 High Road, Ickenham. The
1st and 2nd floors above No. 91 and 93 are currently in use as flats, although planning
permission has not been granted.

Two x 4 bedroom flats above Nos. 95 and 97 and have a comparable layout to the
unauthorised flats but do not form part of this application as they are are exempt from
any future planning enforcement action after a Planning Inspector quashed an
Enforcement Notice (ENF/472/07) for these 2 planning units as the appellant
demonstrated on the balance of probability that the breach of planning control alleged in
the notice commenced four years prior to 11 October 2006. All four residential flats have
a living room, bathroom and kitchen shared by the occupiers.

This application would authorise the removal of the B2 industrial use of the first and
second floors from this predominantly residential area. The ground floor of the premises
have already been converted from the original general industrial use to uses that are
more compatible with residential use (Use Classes A1 and A3). Although the flats lack
private amenity space, guidance advises that above shops, applications need to be
viewed flexibly. In this instance, small shared balcony areas are provided and the
development would provide similar accommodation to other residential accommodation
within the parade. Both the existing unauthorised staircase and walkway and the
proposed new staircase would not harm the visual amenities of the area nor result in any
unacceptable loss of privacy to surrounding residential occupiers. Previous approved
schemes on the site have allotted 4 car parking spaces for residential use in the rear

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 63



yard.

This current scheme proposes the same arrangement of 4 car parking spaces for use by
the 4 residential units above Nos. 91-97 High Road. This scheme addresses the reason
of refusal with respect to car parking by relocating the new staircase within the frame of
an existing storage room (owned by the applicant and independent in use terms from the
ground floor commercial units) and making adequate provision for waste/recycling
storage to the new residential units.

2, RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers PL/VP/1616-03 Rev.
C, PL/VP/1616-04 Rev. B, PL/VP/1616-05 Rev. A, PL/VP/1616-06 Rev. A, PL/VP/1616-
01 Rev. E, 1616-07 Rev. B and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the
development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and the London Plan (July 2011).

2 RES17 Sound Insulation

Within 2 months of the date of this permission details of a scheme for protecting the
proposed development from road traffic noise and noise transmission between the the
ground floor units and the residential above has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. All works which form part of the scheme shall be
fully implemented before the development is occupied and thereafter shall be retained
and maintained in good working order for so long as the building remains in use.

REASON

To ensure that the amenity of the occupiers of the proposed development is not
adversely affected by road traffic and commercial noise in accordance with policy OES of
the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and London
Plan (July 2011) Policy 7.15.

3 RES22 Parking Allocation

Notwithstanding the submitted site plan no unit hereby approved shall be occupied until a
parking allocation scheme has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local
Planning Authority.

The submitted plan shall allocate an individual parking space for each of the 4 flats on
the site and involve the physical marking out of the parking bays serving the commercial
area and the boundaries of the refuse storage area serving the existing retail unit on site.
Thereafter the parking shall remain allocated for the use of the units in accordance with
the approved scheme and remain under this allocation for the life of the development.

REASON

To ensure that an appropriate level of car parking provision is provided on site in
accordance with Policy AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan . (July 2011).

4 NONSC Screening of External Staircase

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 64



Within 2 months of the date of this permission details of a means of screening views
from the existing external stairs to the side of No 97 shall be submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All works which form part of the scheme shall
be fully implemented before the development is occupied and thereafter shall be retained
and maintained in good working order for so long as the building remains in use.

REASON
To safeguard the privacy of adjoining residents and in accordance with Saved Policy
BE24
INFORMATIVES
1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national

guidance.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures

H8 Change of use from non-residential to residential

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking
facilities

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

R16 Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and
children

R17 Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of
recreation, leisure and community facilities

LPP 3.5 (2011) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 6.9 (2011) Cycling

LPP 6.13 (2011) Parking

LPP 8.2 (2011) Planning obligations

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 65



LPP 8.3 (2011) Community infrastructure levy

3

You are advised that the development hereby approved represents chargeable
development under the Community Infrastructure Levy. The applicant will be liable to pay
the Community Infrastructure Levy to the sum of £6650 with immediate effect. A
separate liability notice will be issued by the Local Planning Authority, however you are
advised that it is your responsibility to notify the Local Planning Authority of the
anticipated commencement date and any changes in liability through submission of the
appropriate forms.

Should you require further information please refer to the Council's Website
(http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/index.jsp?articleid=24738).

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is located on the northwest side of High Road, Ickenham and
comprises the eastern part of a two/three storey retail parade (Nos. 81 to 97) with the
second floor largely being contained within the roof, which includes projecting gable
features and dormers in the front elevation and dormers at the rear. The ground floor units
at Nos. 91 to 93 High Road are in Class A1 retail use as a Tesco Express, with the ground
floor units at Nos. 95 and 97 being in use as restaurants/hot food takeaway. Previously,
the whole of Nos. 91 to 97 High Road was in use as part of a commercial printers (Class
B2) which included the upper floors being used as ancillary office space. The upper floors
at Nos. 91 and 93 have been converted to residential use, initially as HMO
accommodation and subsequently as flats with shared bathroom, lounge and kitchen
facilities, without the necessary planning permission, accessed by means of a rear first
floor walkway across the flat roofs of the ground floor units, via a side external staircase
and passageway from High Road. The remainder of the terrace consists of commercial
uses on the ground floor, with ancillary storage/office use and residential units above.

The north-western boundary of the application site abuts The Greenway, with a three
storey block of flats and maisonettes, to the northeast (Nos. 183 - 199 High Road). On the
opposite side of the High Road, the former American Air base is being re-developed,
mainly for residential with the West Ruislip Underground Station sited some 200m to the
east. The rest of the surrounding area is predominantly residential. The site forms part of
a retail parade as designated in the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

This application seeks part retrospective permission to for the retention of 2 x 4 bedroom
flats above 91 and 93 High Road Ickenham and the retention of an existing external metal
staircase accessed from the side of No. 97, plus the addition of a new staircase accessed
from the rear yard to serve all the flats above 91-97 High Road, Ickenham.

The existing external access stairs are attached to the northeast flank wall of the building,
towards the rear and have a depth of 6.9m, rising to a height of 3.7m above ground level
to provide direct access to the flats from an elevated walkway with 1m high railings above
the existing flat roofs of the single storey commercial elements. The provision of the

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 66



external staircase has enabled the flats to be accessed independently from the ground
floor units and provide access directly to the High Road along the flank wall of No 97 but
does not provide direct access to the rear yard and off street car parking. The new
external staircase would link onto the existing walkway above the single storey
commercial elements, but in contrast the existing external staircase would provide direct
access to the yard and car parking area. The scheme also proposes re-organising the
existing refuse arrangement to the rear of Nos. 95 and No 97 involving the demolition of
existing refuse stores to provide space for refuse storage areas for the commercial units
beneath the new stair case.

The rear service yard would provide 4 off-street parking spaces together with separate bin
and cycle storage provision for the flats. The scheme does not alter the existing provision
of 3 car parking spaces for the commercial units at Nos. 91-97 located behind the Tesco
Express and the refuse area behind serving the Tesco Express.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

14964/APP/2001/943 91-97 High Road Ickenham
RETENTION OF AIR CONDITIONING UNITS AND INSTALLATION OF ACOUSTIC HOOD

Decision: 20-07-2001  Approved

14964/APP/2006/2429  91-97 High Road Ickenham

CHANGE OF USE OF 4 EXISTING FIRST FLOOR OFFICE UNITS TO 4 THREE-BEDROOM
FLATS, (INCORPORATING ROOF ACCOMMODATION) WITH SIDE/REAR EXTERNAL
ACCESS STAIRCASE AND REAR TERRACE.

Decision: 23-11-2006 Refused Appeal: 29-11-2007 Dismissed

14964/APP/2007/1178  91-97 High Road Ickenham

CHANGE OF USE OF FOUR EXISTING FIRST/ SECOND FLOOR OFFICE UNITS TO FOUR
THREE-BEDROOM FLATS (INCORPORATING ROOFSPACE ACCOMMODATION) WITH
SIDE /REAR EXTERNAL ACCESS STAIRCASE AND REAR TERRACE.

Decision: 29-06-2007 Refused

14964/APP/2007/560 91-97 High Road Ickenham

ERECTION OF AN EXTERNAL STAIRCASE AND ALTERED ACCESS TO FIRST FLOOR
(EXISTING STAIRCASE TO BE REMOVED)

Decision: 25-05-2007 Refused

14964/APP/2008/1245  91-97 High Road Ickenham

CHANGE OF USE OF FOUR EXISTING FIRST/SECOND FLOOR OFFICE UNITS TO FOUR
4-BEDROOM FLATS (INCORPORATING ROOFSPACE ACCOMMODATION) WITH SIDE
/REAR EXTERNAL ACCESS STAIRCASE AND REAR TERRACE. (PART RETROSPECTIVE)

Decision: 26-08-2008 Refused

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 67



14964/APP/2009/896 91-97 High Road Ickenham

Change of use of first and second floors from Class B2 industrial use to 4 four-bedroom flats
with side/rear external access staircase and rear first floor walkway and installation of new rear
first floor walkway and staircase (Part Retrospective Application).

Decision: 27-05-2010 Refused

14964/E/94/0636 91-97 High Road Ickenham
Erection of a single-storey rear extension

Decision: 27-07-1994  Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History
PLANNING HISTORY

The site has an extensive planning history. The relevant history relating to the upper floors
is as follows:

14964/APP/2006/2429 - for the retention of the change of use from office to four 3-
bedroom flats at first and loft levels and installation of external access stairs was refused
on 23/11/06 on the grounds of the residential use not affording adequate amenity above
an industrial use and lack of a S106 agreement to provide additional education facilities.
An appeal was subsequently dismissed.

14964/APP/2007/560 - for the installation of an external staircase was refused on
25/05/07 on the grounds of the staircase would allow independent use and therefore
facilitate the retention of the existing substandard form of residential accommodation,
above a general Class B2 industrial use and the external means of access was
considered substandard.

14964/APP/2007/1178 for the change of use of four existing first/second floor office units
to four 3-bedroom flats (incorporating roofspace accommodation) with side/rear external
access staircase and rear terrace was refused on 04/05/07 on grounds of providing
substandard accommodation above an industrial use and the staircase would allow
independent use and therefore facilitate the retention of the existing substandard form of
residential accommodation.

14964/APP/2009/896 for the change of use of first and second floors from Class B2
industrial use to 4 four-bedroom flats with side/rear external access staircase and rear first
floor walkway and installation of new rear first floor walkway and staircase (Part
Retrospective Application) Refused 27 May 2010 on grounds of providing substandard
accommodation above an industrial use, the staircase would allow independent use and
therefore facilitate the retention of the existing substandard form of residential
accommodation, plus a failure to secure a financial contribution towards educational
facilities.

ENF/472/07/ - An Enforcement notice was issued on 11 October 2010 for a breach of
planning control as alleged for unauthorised change of use of the upper floors (first and
second) from office to residential for 4 x four bedroom flats at 91-97 High Road. The
requirements of the notice were (i) cease the use of the property as residential; (ii) remove

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 68



all sleeping facilities, domestic cooking equipment, food preparation areas and domestic
furnishings; and (iii) remove from the land all debris resulting form compliance with the
above requirements. Six months full compliance time was given. The Enforcement Notice
was appealed (APP/R5510/C/10/2141184) and the Inspector issued his decision on 4
August 2011. Whilst the appeal was formally dismissed the Inspector did adjudge the two
flats above 95-97 on the balance of probabilities were in occupation for 4 years from the
date of the Notice served and hence were exempt from planning enforcement action.

As regards the ground floor, the following applications are relevant:

63005/APP/2007/1175 at 97 High Road, Ickenham for the subdivision of ground floor to
form a separate unit and change of use from class B2 (general industry) to class A3
(restaurant, snack bar, cafe) for use as a restaurant with installation of a new shop front
and flue was approved on 29/06/07.

63006/APP/2007/1176 at 91-93 High Road, Ickenham for the sub-division of ground-floor
to form a separate unit and change of use from class B2 (general industry) to class A1
(shops) for use for retail purposes and installation of a new shop front was approved on
29/06/07.

63007/APP/2007/1177 at No.95 High Road, Ickenham for the sub-division of ground-floor
and change of use from class B2 (general industry) to class A3 (restaurants, snack bars,
cafes) for use as a restaurant and installation of a new shop front was approved on
29/06/07.

Also, it is noted that planning application ref: 58425/APP/2004/348 at No.81 High Road, at
the other end of the parade for the erection of a single storey rear extension and change
of use from Class A1 to a Class A3 restaurant was allowed on appeal. This scheme also
resulted in the residential accommodation only being served by an external staircase from
the ground to the first floor.

Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.10 To seek to ensure that development does not adversely affect the amenity and

the character of the area.

Part 2 Policies:

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.
BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 69



OEA1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local

area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

H8 Change of use from non-residential to residential

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking facilities

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

R16 Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and children

R17 Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and
community facilities

LPP 3.5 (2011) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 6.9 (2011) Cycling

LPP 6.13 (2011) Parking

LPP 8.2 (2011) Planning obligations

LPP 8.3 (2011) Community infrastructure levy

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

A site notice was displayed and 10 adjoining owner/occupiers were consulted in writing plus the
Ickenham Residents Association.

Three individual letters of objection and a reply from the The Ickenham Residents Association have
been received objecting on the following grounds:

i. The external staircases will raise visual amenity, noise and privacy issues to neighbours;

ii. The parking provision is inadequate with residents and visitors regularly using/blocking access to
the car park belonging to the flats and houses at The Greenway;

ii. Car parking layouts are not workable and will involve cars reversing onto the road, resulting in
risk to pedestrian safety;

iv. The staircase will block access to the car parking bays;

v. The car parking allocated to residential was allocated in previous approved schemes to the
commercial units on site and there is not sufficient space for both;

vi. Existing structures and uses on site have not been accurately reflected on submitted drawings;

vii. Works on site not conformed with building regulations, health and safety regulations, water
regulations;

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 70



viii. Amenity space is insufficient and residential refuse areas non existent;

ix. The takeaway on site pours waste directly down surface water road gullies and wash out refuse
bins onto the forecourt and then runs into the surface water gully that result in issues with vermin.

Internal Consultees
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT

I do not wish to object to this application. | must advise that the staircase was subject to a
complaint to this team alleging noise nuisance under the Environmental Protection Act 1990, from
late night usage as it is situated in close proximity to windows on the gable end wall of the adjoining
residential building. In addition new security lighting was also the subject of a complaint, however
following intervention by this team, modifications to the fittings and controls were made such that
their impact was reduced to acceptable levels. The cumulative impact of the access arrangements
to the dwellings is not significantly acute in this instance, and a balance must be made between the
safety and amenity requirements of adjoining residential properties.

ACCESS OFFICER

In assessing this application, reference has been made to London Plan July 2011, Policy 3.8
(Housing Choice) and the Council's Supplementary Planning Document, Accessible Hillingdon
adopted January 2010.

The proposed conversion could not reasonably incorporate the Lifetime Home standards and it is
suggested that the above policy is not applied in this instance. No objection.

WASTE DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT TEAM:

Based on the proposed location of both the household and commercial waste bins this would seem
to offer the best solution to waste storage at the site.

HIGHWAY ENGINEER:

The site is located opposite West Ruislip station and has a PTAL of 3. On street parking in The
Greenway (off Ickenham High Road) is restricted before 11.00am while in the part of The
Greenway behind the site on street parking on one side is unrestricted.

Permission is sought for two additional 4 bed units and whilst there are concerns that only one
parking space per unit is proposed, no objections are raised as with previous submissions no
objections were raised to this level of parking provision.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The development seeks permission to bring the upper floors of this part of the parade into
residential use, which appears to have been their historic use, albeit tied to the ground
floor uses with full height internal staircases. There is no objection to the loss of the
industrial use in terms of Policy LE4, given the clear potential for conflict with the amenity
of surrounding residential occupiers by reason of noise generation, vibration, potential for
smells and fumes and other general disturbance resulting from an industrial use in such
close proximity to adjoining residential properties. Furthermore, there is no objection in
principle in creating additional residential uses within this residential area. As such, the
proposal is considered to comply with policies BE19 and LE4 of the adopted Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).
7.02 Density of the proposed development

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 71



7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

As this scheme is to change the use of part of an existing building, residential density is
not strictly relevant as this applies to new build schemes. However, with 35 units per
hectare (u/ha) and 235 habitable rooms per hectare (hr/ha) the scheme is within the
density guidelines of the London Plan which requires that new housing within a suburban
setting and a PTAL score of 3 to generally be in the range of 150 - 250 habitable rooms
per hectare (hr/ha) and 35 - 65 units per hectare (u/ha).

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this application.
Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The only external alterations to the building is the installation of the external staircases
and a rear walkway. The existing staircase is set back on the side elevation of the parade
so that it would not be readily visible from the High Road. The proposed staircase and
rear walkway with their associated railings can be seen from The Greenway, however, an
external rear staircase is also found on this parade, at No. 81 High Road which was
allowed on appeal. The existing and proposed staircases and walkways would either be
sufficiently set back from the road frontages and/or be viewed against the back drop of
existing buildings so that they would not appear unduly detrimental to the visual amenities
of the street scene or the surrounding area. No objections are raised on design grounds to
the additional proposed staircase and walkway at the rear, which would match the design
of the existing staircase and walkway. The development therefore complies with Policies
BE13 and BE19 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

Impact on neighbours

The proposed change of use represents a significant improvement for surrounding
residential occupiers in terms of the potential for noise and general disturbance as
compared to the authorised Class B2 industrial use of these premises.

The use of the external staircase, being sited towards the rear of the side elevation of the
parade would not permit any overlooking of the front and rear elevations of Nos. 183 to
199 High Road, the adjoining block of flats/maisonettes. The only side windows on this
block facing the application site are three small obscure glazed windows, one on each
floor. The adjoining building itself is therefore not overlooked. Amenity space for the
ground floor units in this block is provided at the front, adjoining the High Road. The
staircase does permit views over the amenity space of No. 199, the adjoining ground floor
flat. This amenity space is already overlooked by Nos. 193 and 199, the two maisonettes
above, but the staircase would exacerbate the situation, albeit intermittently, mainly as
residents exited the flats. Previous schemes on the site involving retention of the existing
external staircase were not adjudged to provide a reason of refusal in respect of loss of
privacy/overlooking.

A condition requiring an appropriate screen on the side of the staircase would effectively
prevent the loss of privacy from the use of the external stairs and with an appropriate
design, would not appear unduly unsightly or intrusive, given its siting adjacent to an
existing flank elevation of a three storey parade.

As regards the existing rear walkway and the proposed external stairs to the rear yard,
design guidance advises that in order to safeguard the privacy of adjoining neighbours,

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 72



properties and their private amenity areas, taken to be the 3m depth of rear garden
immediately adjoining the rear elevation should not be overlooked within a 21m distance.
In this instance, the existing walkway and the new stairs would be sited over 30m from the
nearest residential boundary in The Greenway. The existing and proposed walkways and
staircases, given their siting, would not permit views into adjoining first floor property
windows in the parade.

It is therefore considered, subject to a condition requiring a side screen to the side
external staircase, the development would not result in a loss of privacy to surrounding
residential occupiers, in accordance with policy BE24 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and relevant guidance in the
Council's HDAS: 'Residential Layouts'.

Although the use of the metal staircase has the potential to generate noise and vibration,
such staircases are a traditional means of providing access to first floor units in parades.
A similar external staircase was also approved on appeal at No. 81 at the other end of the
parade. As such, no objections can be raised to the staircase in terms of policy OE1 of the
adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

In terms of the accommodation provided, the units would be self-contained flats with
shared kitchen, bathroom, toilet and living room facilities for its occupants with the flats
having their own access and internal staircases to access the second floor bedrooms. All
facilities are self-contained and habitable rooms have adequate outlook. The two 4
bedroom flats would have an internal floor area of 95sq.m. satisfying the London Plan
90sg.m. minimum standard for 4 bedroom flats.

The rear walkway would pass close to the first floor windows of the proposed flats but the
nearest windows would serve kitchens.

The Council's guidance for new build schemes states that non-family flats above shops do
not have to provide external amenity space. With 4 bedrooms, these units would provide
family housing. However, each flatted pair share a 19sq.m. area of external amenity
space sited between the first floor projecting wings of the parade. It is considered that this
space, although not ideal, does provide at least a small amenity area and a place to dry
clothes. Furthermore, adjoining units in the parade do not provide any amenity space and
are of a comparable size.

Policy H7(iii) refers to residential units above ground floors having internal staircases. The
flats do have individual internal staircases between the first and second floors. The
external access from ground to first floor requires an external staircase. It is not
considered that a reason for refusal based on this would be upheld at appeal.

It is therefore considered that the accommodation provided does now provide suitable
living accommodation, in accordance with policies BE19, OE1 and OE3 of the adopted
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and Policy 3.5 of
the London Plan.

7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The proposed scheme shows 2 off-street car parking spaces in the rear yard area of No.
95 and No 97 High Road for the 2 flats that are the subject of this planning application
plus 2 car parking spaces for the flats that were regularised by the partial quashing of an
Enforcement Notice by the Planning Inspector.

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 73



7.1

7.12

713

714

715

In addition the scheme shows 3 car parking spaces allocated for the 3 ground floor
commercial units at Nos. 91-97 High Road and these are located to the rear of Tesco
Express. This level of car parking provision for the flats has been generally accepted as
part of other permissions on this site. These other permissions were also based on 4 car
parking spaces allocated for the commercial units (at 91-97) located to the rear of 91/93
High Road (Tesco Express). Only 3 of these 4 commercial parking spaces is in operation
(as detailed in the site plan submitted with this scheme) as a rear concrete stair has been
constructed providing rear staff access/fire escape to the Tesco store. It is understood at
any time only 2 members of staff from the retail unit arrive by car.

The last refused scheme (14964/APP/2009/896) seeking retention of the 4 flats above No
91-97 High Road was refused on car parking provision grounds with the full use of all the
parking spaces shown not considered possible given the bin stores in the rear yard and
the proposed new external staircase inhibiting the movement of vehicles into the 4
residential car parking bays, plus 2 of the car parking bays serving the commercial units
being blocked by the bins and the fire exit stairs to the rear of Tesco Express.

This current scheme has revised the design and location of the proposed staircase to the
yard from the upper floor flats and would result in no obstruction of the vehicular access to
the residential car parking bays thereby substantially addressing the previous highway
related reason for refusal. Further details have been provided of bin storage areas for
refuse provision to the commercial units and the upper floor flats such that these bin
stores would not obstruct vehicle movements for the residential scheme.

The proposed location of the refuse bins provision for the Tesco Express would not
occupy any previously agreed car parking bays for the site. Notwithstanding the scheme
provides for 3 car parking spaces not 4 for use by the commercial units on the site on and
therefore does not address in full the previous highways reason, on balance it is
considered this shortfall in parking against previous approved schemes for the site is not
considered to provide a reason of refusal given (i) the commercial car parking
arrangement does not relate directly to the residential flats that are the substantial matter
of this application and (ii) based on a series of site visits by the case officer that provide
no evidence all 3 commercial parking bays are utilised.

Subject to a condition requiring the full setting out of the car parking bays, the agreed
allocation of the bays to the commercial and residential units and strict adherence to the
agreed location of the refuse bins it is considered the scheme would comply with Policies
AM7 and AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

Urban design, access and security

See Section 7.07
Disabled access

The Access Officer advises that given the inherent nature of the existing accommodation,
the building is fundamentally inaccessible for disabled people. No provision in terms of
disabled access/Lifetime Homes standards is required.

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Not applicable to this application.
Sustainable waste management

The submitted plans provide provision for 4 refuse bins in the rear yard for the residential

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 74



7.16

717

718

719

7.20

7.21

7.22

units. The application also involves the demolition of 2 existing refuse stores in the rear
yard that are for use by the commercial units at Nos. 95 and 97 High Road and the
relocation of this commercial refuse provision beneath the proposed new external rear
staircase within a space currently occupied by a single storey furniture store room (that
would be demolished).

The refuse provision for the residential units above and the refuse provision for the
commercial units at No. 95 and No 97 High Road complies with the capacity standards as
set out by the Waste Development Team. The refuse bin would be located in an area
where they will not prejudice the manoeuvring of cars in and out of the car parking bays to
the rear allocated for the residential units.

The scheme will not impact upon the existing arrangement of 3 Eurobins serving Tesco
Express set alongside the fire exit stairs behind the retail unit.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

This matter can be addressed by means of a condition requiring the submission and
implementation of a noise insulation scheme. As such, the scheme complies with policy
OE1 and OE3 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

Comments on Public Consultations

Points (i), (ii), (iii) (viii) are dealt with in the main body of the report.

Pts (iv) & (vi) Revised drawings were received following the initial submission of the
scheme to address this issue with the new staircase and accurate drawings of the existing
buildings on site.

Point (v) The physical separation of the car parking for the residential on site and the
commercial uses on the site was agreed in previously agreed schemes on the site and is
consistent with these ground floor commercial use schemes.

Pts (vii) Compliance with building regulations and heath safety regulations is not a
material consideration for planning applications

Pt (ix) Is not a material planning consideration in respect to this application.
Planning Obligations

The development is not subject to planning obligations. Nonetheless it is mayoral CIL
liable and the applicant has been advised that once permission is granted, they will be
liable to a £6650 CIL levy.

Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
Other Issues

None.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor
When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 75



legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

The development would regularise the 2 residential flats on the upper 2 floors of 91-93
High Road. It is considered that the accommodation would now provide acceptable living
space, given that the ground floor use has changed from general industrial to retail (Class
A1) and restaurant (Class A3) uses that are more compatible with residential use.
Furthermore, the development, including the access arrangements, would not be
detrimental to the visual amenities of the area and although the use of external staircase
does involve some loss of privacy to the adjoining amenity area of the adjoining ground
floor flat, this is not so significant to justify a reason for refusal, given the existing
overlooking of the flats above and a condition requiring side screening to be provided will
address this. The introduction of a new external stairs from the yard provides direct
access from the flats to the parking allocated for their purpose making them practical. The
cycle and refuse storage areas do not prejudice the use of the residential parking bays
addressing a previous reason of refusal. The scheme is recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

London Plan (July 2011)

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: 'Residential Layouts' and 'Accessible
Hillingdon'

National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012)

Letters making representations

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 76



Contact Officer: Gareth Gwynne Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 77



' Buckland /

g
'

Court K

Cottes

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2012 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address

91 - 97 High Road
Ickenham

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning,
Environment, Education
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale
14964/APP/2011/2969 1:1,250
Planning Committee Dates ¢ b
eptember
North Page 78 2012

LONDON




Agenda Annex

Plans for
North
Planning Committee

9th October 2012

THILLINGDON

NNNNNN

www. hillingdon.gov.uk



Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address Gospel Oak, 228 Swakeleys Road, Ickenham

Development:  Erection of a block of 9 flats (4 no. one bedroom and 5 no. two bedroom)
with associated parking and amenity space (involving demolition of
existing house)

LBH Ref Nos: 11246/APP/2012/1575

Date Plans Received: 27/06/2012 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 27/06/2012

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 80



¥ @ 0011|2102 AUVNYE3S
an

NMVEQ | vos | 310

SNOILYAZT3 B SNYd HOOTd
ONIOTNG DNILSIX3 3L

PYHNINOI
QYOH SATIINVMS MYO 134809  :103rodd

eeazEs:
R O

NAY 68N X8sPRIN ‘PialjaseH 2D UIINYY

sue|daWwo

\

T awe OGRS

Nvd 31IS 3 0013 ONNOYD DNILSIX3

Page 81




W @00kl 2102 AdYNEB3d

NMVHO | TIVOS 3va
£-0r9L NYId 3LIS B BOO1 ANNOHD
:ON 960 ¥S0d0H INNLNO =N
HYHNINOI!
QYOH SATIIHYMS "HY0 T3dS0D  :103ro¥d
UYEMYHLA BN 1ININO

EegreaL
R OTHIN o

M

woy

887220 56810 14 880228 S6E10 -1
119 68N XaSOPDIA "PIBSIEH K LoD ‘SUBDIES) LAINLD

sue|dawo

O30V 310N SRIVISONYT 2z AVt
SIGHNONINY VNS 2002 Ty
£ 3w

3

5

LIS 4O AW 38 01 SHOSHIND Ty

y e NAYHO 1L M4 TS LN 00
\ QU S TGS A5 A 10 AL S EUAD L
k) J IHONAID

Page 82

a

¥

NOBUA

Voo misnssary ehlsser; SEAIONE Wi Siiopikand, vy D), SN Y pomE———

stun pigodEors WO wim pacE 4o s pesEdss idile Buue) Iy Bupun |

Avwesoy oM 9
‘oupuessiig oN £

oupey “ox § ¥ odoiio

Daspey “ON & ¥ edojed

R |

Baieios fjok HOPUNCR o) Burisie sion |

sEsEEET g |

5 odoog
gy

5 Aavsuuy 8 jlousion sswe pared 7 suiog |
wibig DiNER) 3 IDUEIOH o Guuny y Bupniog
s |

SREFIEI |




Iy @ 001:1 2102 AdYNye3d
NMYHO 3OS 3va 5 P 5
2- 0vs1 SNOILYAZT3 B SNY1d 50O
:ON 9Hd DNIGTINEG ONILSIX3 FLL
WYHNI®OI
OYOH SAZTINVMS MYO T3JS0D  1103roud
HYHHVHL A BN EUE o]
EeRetal
VB 4O £

oo jauBLIG@ISuB|CaWoYIRYILIed 13

887228 6810 14 8BrcI8 96810 :L
Q9 BB X9SBIPPIR "PieRBIEH “IlIH U2INYD 'SUBPIESD 4INLD
*, ﬁ

sue|dauWwoy

S0
ALNTINNOD ¥ ONINNYIA

[0z NAF £ 7

NOGONITIIH
30 HONOHOE KOONC

Er e

NOILYAZT3 Y34 ONILSIX3

OYOM SITTIRNMS D52 WOUs

NOILYAZT3 3QIS DNILSIX3

NYd JOOW DNILSIX3

OVOH SATES 122 WO

NOILVAZT3 3QIS ONILSIX3

NOILVAZNS LNOYL DNILSIX3

N¥Id HOOTd LSYI3 DONILSIX3

Page 83




WIS N CRIT 3 01 SHOSNEND Vi

Tl : e o.__ontw_ Bl >mq_.d,mm_um NN $41 WOk 3OS LON 00

= A 2 i R ST V0N 5 ALKFE0H THL S DNMVIC S

.- 0¥91 NYd 4004 8 HOOTd ONZ * HOOTS LS1 IMDARC

iON 90 WSOdOUd INNLNO E=ERILS
WYHNINOI
Q¥OH SATTINVMS YO 13d4S09D  :LO3rodd
—- e 5 50051 woeee e
BYEMYHL A BN +IN3D S i
e NY1d HOO74 ONOD3S
W02 AWl U@ Sue|dawoylendiled 13 Yole S
Ve A 98r226 56810 4 BOYEZE 56810 1L e s awu
QY 68N ¥8S8|PRIN "PRIAIRH *|IH Y2NUD "Suspies yainud S g 14
A e, =
m C m m _. F ‘_ O i g & 45
Rits gy T Wi
AHLLS JURT [
W
| sosse g iy
7 ! g 0y puoses
| sz sstez sey e
| wisese semz desyy pune o
sewsres
| szt (smmiaeH 1511°0) WIELL ooy bS
[ s
| v
NY1d 3008 NVY1d HOONS LsylS

sy sy 2462 AV 8

SININONINY T30 2H02 ok




W@ 00i:1 | 2102 AUVNEE3S

&) ‘NMYHa 3OS ALV
S - 09l SNOIYATTS
:ON 9Ha WSOdOHd 3NITLNO E=Riiiy
WYHN3®DI
VO SAZNINYMS "MY0 13dS0D  :103rodd
HYEMYHL A BN 1IN3ND
WooBUEIUIq@SURIdeWOYIERdIIed 13
CEBERSS

VR SO T

A

B8B¥EE8 56810 :d BBKFEZ8 S6810 11
NQ9 68N X3SBIPRIKW “PIRIRIBH *lIH YOINYD 'suspies) yInyg

sue|dawoy

0300V SAON TRV 2102 AV B
SLNINANTIY TINID 2102 Yy v

aloN 30 NOISIAZY

wioep 3 EmOPUM
L jeoy

sapuny

g

CTWIETIA NI

NOILVA3T3 Uv3d 03S0d0Yd

gl

OVOH SKNTAYNS 922 WOUS

NOILYA313 30IS 03S0d0Hd

i
EE I

]

o =

B 4 | O S|

VO SATTDATIS 062 O

i

NOILYA313 30IS 03S0d0dd

|
i

=1

1

[

NOILYA3T3 LNOYS 0380d0Hd

sesn wner 41E

P 1]

Page 85




LYSLOS Z0BLO 0N
EBLBLL ZASLO Xud
2000LL Z8SLO WL

569 9N3 ‘TuaH Adr LAt opd
oG miaod S9a0RE
19905 ubik onuos esnpuL POISE
ouncy exdeny nos Aup GI0BRO0M 41

sAeaisns Buip|ing painsesw pue pue
“p11 sAeaing Aaiypos) [aeysIN

sy Sty By

210 fuenigay 0024

= g

Lo Liesus
Kanns olydesBodo |

p—

JeDjeyL ‘A N
o

INVHNI®OI
peoy shejeyems gzz oN 'JeO ¥2ds09,
g

ULa00 a0 De0N Shararens LLZON 2 LS 4
gng ARUISEIS UO POIBNYIS WESO 0) Palesal Spror]

e
o s

oo pecn 0

]
o ® 8 Sy

Bapte Bugeims 8 o sar 28 Aenawenccs 1
R 550 53 000 Bk B0 LAROALS G 9 U0 B, S
0 BUORALENR 58 ORI USRI LR U 0 PRI B3 O 81

it oo
o e e e 35 0, A
o s o 1 R S o o 3 e s
R —

i 4 o s o Y 8 3 LA

- o o PR S,

Oy g 1298 TR 2 LN R A

s o
.

e 0o 8 s
g o e v 3 s LS S § T s # G

B 70 2 L 08 8 DO S D SR L0 S
o 0 vomtept oy ome s o wd

R s

S K S

ChHALNRSA MO QRO B0 OO NIzOMs |

440 QRRHLL SHIAN 90 THYM3S - GHUYI TITIIOON HILAGNOD ¥ 51 EML

=

Page 86



Notes Site Address [LONDON BOROUG

Site boundary Gospel Oak OF gll LLINGDON

anning,
For identification purposes only. 228 Swak9|eys Road Environment, é,ducation
This copy has been made by or with Ickenham & Community Services
the authority of the Head of Committee Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Services pursuant to section 47 of the Telephone No_: Uxbridge 250111
Copyright, Designs and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale ;
Act 1988 (the Act). ¥
Unless the Act provides a relevant 1 1 246’APP1201 2]1 575 1 A !250
exception to copyright. - =
© Crown copyright and database Planmng Fonifites Dates t b
: epiemper y
rights 2012 Ordnance Survey 41
100019283 North Page 87 2012 i
LUNDON




Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address 48 PINN WAY RUISLIP

Development: Part two storey, part single storey rear extension and single storey side
extension involving installation of additional windows to side elevations,
involving demolition of existing conservatory to rear and existing attached
garage to side

LBH Ref Nos: 17220/APP/2012/1437

Date Plans Received: 13/06/2012 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 18/06/2012

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 88



34
1/;{_;

o

o

k7

Page 89

LOCATION PLAN

(scale: 1:1250)

BLOCK PLAN
(scale: 1:500)

o
o
el
-

50 Meter

100 Meter

50

10



S T-TOETOL  fowsuma| 77000

e Mo |l ueid %00lg 005:T
ZI0Z/90/ET g
AnysowAL S B 4 DL bvH 'disimy ‘Ao uuid st
SNOLLYAZTS ‘SN OO 1SHI4 ® GNNOYS SNISTEE i uend Joold 1sii4 Bunsix3

JDEYH BSIPEiy 'POOMULISH ‘PROY (4F1RD 25
0SOLPSSTRIO (90W  LE Tb8 £610 RL

g

S20IAJ2S [2INIRYDLY Ojjody

Gl

\K%___ ._m_&h

uoneAs|3 3g Bunsixg e ——
o S
= o — N (]
. = _ >
©
I o
E o ueTd Jool4 punols Bupsixg
¥ i
m m Sy S g i
£ H
i
43 ﬁ__
_L I L
uoneas|g MN Bunsixg  —ma——— uoneAs|3 gN Bunsixg e S L

D TvH

BT

NP - — e L & rﬁ I
.f = = 2 _/l

1 B

FoVHYD




R ¢-T0E'T0L

wa yanrdia sl ¢ eydesuy

051

ZV0T/P0/ET

AEoAL S 8 A

402 v dijsing ‘AR Uuid B

SHYTd HOUH LSHI % ONNOYD g35040%d

JDESYH %53(PPiid ‘POOMULION 'PROY [[I4318T 2§
0S0LPISTRLD (0% LE6 TE ETERO 1PL

S0IAISS |RININYPD.Y Ojjody

o “Bumig

Ag umeip
BjEs

NIHILIM

A ONINIG

WNOOY /
ERIYEN

|

REE

WOOY
AY1d

ONIAIT

i

WOOY
ONILLIS

i

Q ey

_>_OOm_
HIMOHS

¥ NO0Yd3d

42

J

Page 91




g €-T0E T0L on ‘Bunig
vwe 'yandig surey ¢ eydogspyg A umeip
05:1 sjess
TT0T/50/ET R
ANYUSOWAL Sikg g 2l
4D b ‘diisiny ‘e uuid gy
NYId ¥O0H L5414 03504084 L

ADEIYH YRS3IPEal |poomypay ‘PRoy [IYFRD TS
OSOLPISTR0 J90W  LE6 Tve £T6T0 SRL

S20IAI2S [RINIIRYRIY Ojjody

i

7w sus saded [euibug

—

ﬁ Q39 Y3LSYIN

AQN1LS

————
_—/
a

£ WO0Ya3g

J

¢ NOOYQ38

g =1=sl

Page 92




oA ¥ - TOE'T0L
"8 yarydig m_zax“i.._satﬁ

cﬂ__wn___.m
ANUPYsoWAY 51
B2 bYH dissy e .._..._ ow
SNOLLYATTE MS ¥ 3N 035040ud
4DE 9YH XI59PPI ‘pooMULON ‘PROY YED 75
0S0£P952820 190W  ££6 THE £2610 L

S92IAI3S [BINIDBUYRY Ofjody

il

UONEA3|T 1S9\ YInos pasodold 0S:T

v 95 mded |euibisg

3 ™

UONeA3|3 1523 YUoN pasodoid 0S5:T

T

/ i

. SN = inEEE

L {of JHEEHI

| Page 93

T

L |

//\\



e G- TOS'TOZ  |on-ouwa| ovems et usiio

T e [ uoneA|3 1se3 ynos pasodold 0S:T

; L]
ZT02/90/ET weg
ANUPYSOWAL SIl 78 I )
AT YH iy A vud s

SNOLLYAZTI 35 8 MN 0350d0ud SR

SDE 9YH *PPIY ‘PooMIBION 'PROY [14SIED 5
OSO/PISTBLO GO LE6 ThE ET6T0 /PL

S32IAI3S [BINIIBUYRY Ofjody

o)

Biangmy

UONeA3|3 1S9\ UMON pasodoid 0§:T

-
-

Page 94

RIISO0 BEISq0

e e e 1
i |




l EEZ\LTJDI]D

Evr:wu AVENUE

| EIsubs

f

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2012 Ordnance Survey
100019283

- Site Address
48 Pinn Way

Ruislip

ILONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning,
Environment, Education
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref:
17220/APP/2012/1437

Scale

1:1,250

Planning Committee

North Page 95

Date
September

2012

HHILLINGDON

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address LAND AT WILLOW FARM (FIELD 3116) JACKETS LANE HAREFIELD

Development: Permanent use of the land as a gypsy and traveller caravan site and for the
keeping and breeding of horses with associated operational development,
including the siting of two mobile homes and a touring caravan, retention of
two stable blocks, and the formation of a garden area with the erection of a
garden shed, yard and paddock areas, parking spaces, landscaping and
fencing (Part retrospective application).

LBH Ref Nos: 57685/APP/2011/1450

Date Plans Received:  14/06/2011 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 22/05/2012
11/07/2011 17/05/2012
18/05/2012
06/06/2012
14/06/2011
23/05/2012
25/05/2012

Date Application Valid:

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 96



BCROUGH ©f  HILLINGDON

I

_"

POOM SITaM m._u._
v o?m ] ,.Mu

= T .
¢
. G.,-a.:ab wrn
2 Fjjantiaiiog

z1.§
irss



a
I

Zd9 69N ‘a13143YYH

‘INYT SLIIOVL ‘IWdY4 MOTTIM

00S:T JTVOS

mﬂ_____u_._mﬁ_am_._ ===
ueAeseD buLNOL N
SWoH ajiqol
soigers [
AN
L1

M\

R =y ™—

ov

0¢

0

PV © 00G:1

DD6 9kdH 's¥ang ‘ieay yinos
‘asiy sAaiqis £ nun 1o ebes

Hoddng Buneol4 syong
THOZ a3  Bumesg

LEGLLE 95LL0 (121
(naxis ojsen 'ubjseq

Sl0UU0] ueld
aueq spoer avefoid

Page 98

CT0¢ noAe a)s bunsixy




Buipuejspiey

2|9e31s
jueL andaos _ﬂ_
Buppied Jey T

s901) 1
plepueis maN

obpaH moN gl
abpaH Bunsixg l

ueaeie) buunoj O

Zd9 68N ‘a13143HYH
ANV SLINOVL ‘Wav4 MOTIIM

00S:T J1VOS

(Bunsiaa)
BuipueispieH juel
9)a0u0)  ondsns

_ Juawadopaaqg pasodold _

»popped

ho. )

20U34 |Iey R 1S0d

uap.eo

pays

ov 0¢

Yoopped spopped

QyvA

(Bunsixg)
bujpuejspiey
ajanuc)

J21n0

0

vV © 0051

Page 99



126216 9GLL0 1P pu 5§49 oddng Bupeo|d s)yong
DO6 9k dH "SHong "yieay yinog EN

| ¥V ©® 00T:T 31©3S

sPulweI] uoesaa Buumai] |

g oD
Bupmarip v

ol ji
ARG 30, IUN FRINPUNYE REIEEE BURLM A
o isilidwan 09 syos ipjing |ng

8 9 v [4 0

Max uliprep W

| ‘es1y shejqig £ yun 1D ebeg = SIOWI0D By WD |
it o S 2 0T

OSPL/ET0T/ddY
PlRYyaaey
‘aue] speoer
uuej Mmojprm
ie pue

TT0T Aely

UOHDASH op%S

EHE
{

S A, T

UO1}eAD]] JeaYy

uoReAs|3 JU0

A

e

|

buumeuq asn jo abueyd pasodo.d

CJ0S ON



126216 9GLL0 1P pu
DOB 9LdH "SHaNg "YjeaH yihos EE

§48 uoddng bupgeold syong

vV ® 00T:T 21edS

sPulweI] uoesaa Buumai] |

g oD
Bupmarip v

ol ji
ARG 30, IUN FRINPUNYE REIEEE BURLM A
o isilidwan 09 syos ipjing |ng

8 9 v [4 0

wax uliprep o

| ‘es1y shejqig £ yun 1D ebeg = SIOWI0D By WD |
it o S 2 0T

OSPL/ET0T/ddY
PlRYyaaey
‘aue] speoer
uuej Mmojprm
ie pue

TT0T Aely

UOHDASY3 opiS

EHE
{

R T A -

UO1}eAD]] JeaYy

uoI3eA3|] JUOLY

A

e

|

buumeuq asn jo abueyd pasodo.d

CJ0S ON



"Moo
wax vbiprep o Supasap vl

Rt
FEARRD I3y LN SRUNEUNGE R FUnLMad
i palan 99 syos BUipjing (g

126216 96210191 ™ ¢4g | 0ddng hupeo|4 syong AL .v< @ oo.ﬂu.ﬂ Qﬁmum

D6 0L dH "Syong ‘yieay yinog ™ SOLUMEI] UopRad3 Buumel |
‘95]y sA9|q|g £ Jun 1D eheg N F : i i

_ - S10URI0D) JA =

e ] werer oners |, 01 8 9 14 ¢ 0

AR, S SRR A —

UOHDASY] OpIS UOn eADJ] 189y

- 1
|
N |

=
I
i
i
E;.

0SPT/IT0Z/ddY o))
pIRYyaaey &
‘aue syeoer
uwe MOjIM
1e puey
UOHDAS|3 apIS
= T
T On
T - "...[I_ ' a
EEE R B e
TT0T Aely UONEAIJ] JU0L]

Bbunimesq asn jo abuey) pasodo.id

€00S'ON




YV ©® 00T:T 91e3S e

of 8 9 ¥ z ¢
S R S .

UO1}eAl)] JedYy

Page 103

EUE uoI}eAd|] JUOo.4

‘aue] sypef
uuey Mojiip
1e pue

uoyoASj3 epIS | —] ||_ ==l s il ———
. lin Jrl =

T @lqes
TT0T Aely

266216 0624012 $48 1ioddng Pujgeo|d sHong apL H—m_.—n—_.—mq ﬁmg m—.—_“-.mm-.—m —Uoognﬁ—l lhoom

OB 3LdH "SYang ‘yeal yinos SBLUNEIC) UOUBA3 BULSI] Buipieoq 1aqui} paulels
‘831 $48|0| € JuUN 10 ebeg W SIOUI0D Jy WD y J "
= %3

1S o)se ub153a gm T g|qels a%%n_h N a5 ° z




L£6216 96220 (10 T

D06 BldH "S¥INg "YeaH ylhosg .
'8s|M SA8|T|S € Jun 1D efeg WA
==

13DNS 0)se] :uHI1SIq gm

S$48 uoddng Bupeoid sxong g
sBLuszi] uoreas 3 Buumein

SI0UI0D B =40

T 919®S ..o

0SPFL/TIT0Z/ddY
Pleyaiey
‘aue] spINoef
wuey Mojtm
1e pue

UCHDAS[] SPiS

vV ® 00T:T 2135 T

01

aapao e ji
EARGD Idh PUR FRINEUNIE RRIeg juniajad
W) A i 0 =0 Fuspiing iy

8 9 14 [4 0

[

1

F——f——t—"1
uo1eAl)] JedYy

L

Page 104

UOIJeAl|] Juo.d4

T 2lqes
TT0T Aely

a|yoid Bunasays pajebniiod - jooy
Buipieoq 1aquwiy paules

195 "ON



LE6216 95240131 ™ ¢4g 1 i0ddng ujpeo|d syong T 9182
D6 OLdH "Sjong ‘yieay ynog SOLUMERIC) UOTEA3 (T mc_.;wm__..h_m_. ¢< @ oc.ﬂ ..H .— m BRP3 Je HL EAR T ARG USRS
‘851 SA8[q(S £ 3un 10 eheg W SIOUUOD §y U0 [ wimadwas m o Gupiina iny
; - AL
mas 015eT uBYSA mm PUYS oo Q_H % _@ ._—v _N A_u

I : ! . 1 . ) . 1 ; |

0

o

©

OSPT/TI0Z/ddV &

pPIoyaaey o
‘aue] syaoer
wirey Mojjim
1e pueq

.i-
H, uoyOAR|3 apiS UOnEASJ U0l
Lo i o]
< T
LU
TT0T Aely

pays pasodoud

PoYS'ON




Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

@ Crown copyright and database
rights 2011 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address

Land at Willow Farm
Jackets Lane

Harefield

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning,
Environment, Education
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale
57685/APP/2011/1450 1:2,000
Planning Committee Date
November

NorthPage 106

2011

TFILLINGDON

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address 91-97 HIGH ROAD ICKENHAM

Development: Part-retrospective application for the retention of 2 x 4 bedroom flats above
91 and 93 High Road Ickenham and the retention of an existing external
metal staircase accessed from the side of No. 97, plus the addition of a new

staircase accessed from the rear yard to serve all the flats above 91-97 High
Road, Ickenham.

LBH Ref Nos: 14964/APP/2011/2969

Date Plans Received: 06/12/2011 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 20/02/2012

North Planning Committee - 9th October 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 107



zL-200L psppeauisng | 3 o :&&4 o mm— S OZGH ¥/G8 020 X84 9pSH k/58 0Z0BL  APL LN XPPIA 'IIBYINOS ‘Rempeoig oyl 62-1Z aLl
ZL-Z0EL pappesuyang | a 10 - 9LOL/IdANd ‘o Bumeig dIHSH3INLYVd
ZL0Z-80 umoys eale 210js uig Busixg H g78 0L8n a78 08N l_ _UZ<
ZL-L0-0L pepusLE B IS | © Liog/ik e TN umw”_r__ﬁﬁ vmww__rﬁw,__ i !
Z1-200Z pSpusle uejd uogeso | d dA kg pasosyn , ] ‘ k) : e
— T T 2 %0018 ueld 2)ig paosdold peoy ubiH 'Bge-els peoy UBIH 'ece-eL6
suoisay ey e B lIERa U310 e
1919\ 001 0s 0L 0
0scl-1 e
— AR
0c s NY1d 3LIS ONILSIX3
1919\ 0G 0l 0 \ \ 5
- S 2 ¥ __
e - 005 . f
0 S
1318l 0 S Z Lo i i i : T
—— e 0001
3 v o z E |
0GZl:| -9|eds -
N¥1d NOILYDO1 —
LR N \ 5 M
N /M/ N // i —
. /.// / \/ W — ﬂ
e Ny OROREA W \ b —
A //.,,,..,m// 3 /\\ //v =t : 8
A ,/,, //,/ /// : ¢ i — ~+
. "\ =8 P )
5 . ek ] 9
+% \ B \_ 4 o -
5 =
1 L
,,U. .
eoe | ease ,.—\ L
alo}s uig~] 21018 301 ._! — 1 C
\ //ﬂlr
/_ Bupledies ) I
EBCH \
, 1 L
S =
Bupiled iea ’
ecs / P
<
Bunjied iea f..v 2 J r

ee [/
e

/ Bupjred 1es

~—

[




o hwam.: p— mm— S OZGF #1539 0Z0 MB4  ObSP #/58 0Z0PL AL LGN XPPIA ‘llBYIN0S ‘Aempeaig oy 62-/2 arl
£0-819LIdNd ‘oN Bumelg aj__wmw_ﬂ_.ﬁgm
g8 048N 9178 0k8N
Z102-60 pappeaijsug [ 8 Loz @ra “XeSaIPPIN “¥as3|PPIA
SUB|d UONEICT ‘Wweyua| ‘weyuayd|
€10c-60 pepuswe 0osa) Jojasols uig | dA AQ paosyD . y et : uElu
=2a T 2 %00Ig ‘uBld 2)ig pasodold peoy uUBIH 'egE-eLs peoy UBIH ‘BcE-8L6
suosey afy e B IeRa S0 'ssa1ppY YIS
1819 001 0S 0L O
0scl-L o
— AT
0¢ S N¥1d 3LIS d350d0dd
18919\ 0G 0l 0 ,.,__ N h Y
— T 005 . T =
(o4 ]
1933l 0L g Lo [ l I 5 ]
—™ 0020
£ | 1) 3 3
___loGg il -8|eas) =
N¥1d NOILYDO1 —
oK =
= )}
— = L =)
E —
2
] w |
[ m‘_ a
7
\~> .
i | L
— ./ — 1 .“ T T
ﬁ |
Eale b WW ~
N eale ==
BIOB UAT™ = siops appfaiq == “ 1 L
/ S 2656 ||
=y ON JOOY punoisy
Or_,.vt.mn 180 1o} abelo)s asnjay [
ege
1 L
Bupiied o
egg
/ ) 5
/ Bunjied iea L .—1 i
/A\/\
Gupyied Jea
2lg \J
o N
T

oasa) 5_
lo} BaE 3101S Ui




Z102-80 papuawe asealess | 3 7 ; 925t /53 020 Xed  ObS $/58 020 8L APL LGN XPPIA 'IlBYINCS ‘Rempecig BU) 6242 aLl
i i) 5 dIHSHANLMYL
. 0 GLITUAL Ui JUSSWOD
SLZOE a1 zo-sieudnid oN Buweig Pt g bbb G i i TIONVE
ZL-Z0€L pappeauang | o g 818 018N g78.048N | ssoe 10 pauernpaonmoune ‘wainc: o
CL-Z20€L papuaweaupay | g LLogrt aeg u”.”“”“.“_uwuvﬁ v”_w“”_rﬁ_umuvﬁ,__ au) un pansst 51 Buwesn 41 puE wat Ag pamas:
ZL-L0-E0 umoys fepunoga1s | v dIHSHANLYVY TIINVE 10 Auadaid 50151 Buikess S|
dn ‘g payoayn ; [ ! BeE-
8ied ugisnay | A8y SUeld Jool4 Jsiid Peod UBIH 'ec6-216 peoy UBIH 'ece-2L8 ATEinooe HE 1o) Ua4E1 S| AsaiEsuads ) ofy
di :Rg umelg o 2auspinl 10§ sue GUselp SIL b pajEpul SEalE AUy
SUDISIASY . TN JeRg uain ‘ssaippy Al ONPAYSD SIHL WO Tv2S LoN ad
A LA PAYUEA 3G 01 SUDISUALLD
ISET [ Z 0

T 001

ENEE

AT

Bl6

B56

KITCHEN

;_\\7

BATHRGOM-..

LOUNGE

BEDROOM

\
BEDROOM

BATHROOM

LOUNGE

W.‘?‘

BEDROOM

BEDROOM




oo _ s Lua&_ Itk _ = 975h $258 0Z0 XEd  GbSh v/58 020 PL APk LEN XPPIA ‘I[RYINOS ‘Rempeoig aull 2-42 aw
ZL-20€} a| eg-giotdad ‘on Buimelg ai7 SiHgHaN dIHSH3NLHYd
ZIZ0€l pappeauiang | O g8 0180 g7g018n 1IONVH
ZLZOEL papusweeuipay | 8 kEOE! K et ‘Xasa|ppIA “xes2IPpIN
‘Wweyusyd| ‘Weyuaxd|
ZL-L06L PappE aUj| pay v
di :Ag payasyn SUE|d J00|4 Pucd ‘peoy UbIH 'ege-e ‘peoy ybiH ‘egg-e
=eq Uoswey | Aoy UB|d J00|4 pucasg peoy ublH "ecE-BLE Peoy yblH ‘ece-ele
“SUOISIASY di g uneig 3L ‘lieRa juain ‘ss21ppy SIS SINIAVHT SIHL WaE4 TIv3S LoN od
A% a paiisA 3 0 SuDisUSLID
Z 3 0

———

| /

BEDRCOM

BEDROOM J \\ BEDROOM

BEDROOM

Page 111




o _ e R _ GaiL _ - 9T5h 7258 020 XEd  GbSh b/58 020 PL APk LEN XPPIA ‘I[BYINOS ‘RempeoIg UL 62-£2 aLt
‘o B 017 SIHSHAN LEY4 onYE o oo s | dIHSHIANLEYA
+0 - 9LOL/IdANd N Bumelg BYLIN0WIM UEE Ul 18 ADUYM 151 uesiad pasunyinaun Aue o |_ _Uz<m
g18 0kgn T8 0LEN | ewsonsp 10 paveiar saonnoa ‘Haied 10U 511 1R BONpUe)
10550 T ] Loz aeq XasaEPIA “xasajppiy | 2o Penss s e 2w o we A0 paniesa = z?.,nn_nm“
‘Wweyuayd| ‘weyuaxd| dIHSHINLHY TIONVE Jo Auadaid 5015 Buikep s
2l-2001 papuswe voeAsg | v dA :Ag payoauy . Rercise: , i)
T T suoljeAsig Jesy 1g Juold Bunsixy pecy ubiH 'ece-eLE peoy UBIH ‘eg6-2L6 i e
kg umerg A0 35UBpIG J0i SU8 BUMAEIP SIL LD PAIEIU] SEIE ALY
“SuoisAaY o “d 3L ‘Jlea uaD 'ssalppy A1 ONIWAVED SIHL WO TIvIS LoN O
A U8 PRUSA 3 01 SUDISURLLIG
1319 0L S (4 L 0 NOILYATTI dV3d ONILSIX3

ey 001

Page 112

e
s ] [ _\%
/; x\s\_;\i;\__\:\: =
s ]
B
L 1 L | O
NOILYAZTI LNOY4 ONILSIX3
M,/, \; {
N\ V4
\ 7/
\LL/ | 2 &
/,/ Y i o S




ey _ aag h&L

SE.— [eIS

9Z5F $.58 020 ¥Bd  9SH k258 0Z0 1PL ATk LEN XPPIN ‘lBYnoS ‘Rempeoig aul 62-L2

aLl

Kk QL7 SIHSHIN LUV NoNYE o buti i wasios | IHSHANLHYL
2~ AN o EE_ED FYLIN0oYIm ued U e _.:e“i.mz.__m.:auwu.vmwtn 2un Aue on l_ _Uz<m
878 0k8N 978 0Lan 134 DEIN0I0G “aI003 10
LLOZ/LL aeqg “XasalppiAl “Xasa|ppIn ary un panss: 51 BuEIp 34) pUE WLy AQ PIAIESA St zm:ﬁﬂ
‘Leyuayd| ‘weyuaxg| AIHSHANLHY TIDNVE Jo Auadaid 5051 Buikes Si)
ZL-200L p3puswe vogeasd | dn :Ag paxoauy " R ; Ty
aieg usnay | Asy SUolerd 2pis Buisia peoy ubiH 'Bg6-216 PEOY UbIH 'BEG-216 KoEinooe HEy; JEdEl S| Apparsunds 3l ol
dn :hg umelg Aug asuspint Jof e G uD pagEapul SEAIE AUy
“SUDISASY £ Bl ‘ieRg uaiD :ssaIppy S SNIAVAD SIHL WOHA TIWIS LoN O
25 146 payUEA 3 01 SUISUALID
1212 0L c Z I 0

— 0047

NOILYAZTE 3dIS ONILSIX3

NOILVYATTE 30AIS ONILSIX3

Page 113




o _ e ] _ kit _ — 9ZSH PLSB 020 Xed  OVSP kG 0Z0 BL APk LEN XPPIN ‘II2UINOS ‘Rempeoig Bl G242 aLl
90 - 8LaLdAd ‘oN Bumeig - 017 SIHSHAN LuY4 WonYE o i o s | dIHSHIANLEYA
oYM SRR "uosIad pasuoyIneun Aue o |_ _ Oz<m
ANOUOR A0 U St oy

Loz eeq ol il RS e 0 e LAt Dkl er g

; a1t

‘weyuayd| ‘weyuaxd| dIHSHINLHY TIONVE Jo Auadaid 5015 Buiken s

2102-80 PapUSLUE BB 310} LIG pue j2j o) aseaes | v :
dA ‘g paxasun ‘ ‘po: , oA

T Toswex | Aenl suoljena(d apis 'g Jeay pasodoid peoy UBIH 'ege-ele peoy UBIH ‘eg6-8L6 i e A

di kg umerg Fjus 2auBpinG Jof Sue BUselp Il D pajEpul SEAIE AUy

SUDISINS! : 3| HiERa R ‘ssa1ppy SIS ONIAVAT SIHL HoHS T1vos Lo od

ISIASY L |
A LA PAYUEA 3G 01 SUDISURLLD
19130 0L S Z L 0

T 0047 NOILYAZT3 4Y3d 03SOd0Yd

| - e—s ik (A . it |

Page 114

NOILVYA313 3dIS 03S0d0dd

_i




A’~Co

) Buckland -

urt
/

Cottes

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2012 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address

91 - 97 High Road

Ickenham

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning,
Environment, Education
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale
14964/APP/2011/2969 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
September

North Page 115

2012

HILLINGDON

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 116



	Agenda
	3 To sign and receive the minutes of the meeting held on 30 August 2012
	6 Gospel Oak, 228 Swakeleys Road, Ickenham      11246/APP/2012/1575
	7 48 Pinn Way, Ruislip  17220/APP/2012/1437
	8 Land at Willow Farm (field 3116) Jackets Lane, Harefield    57685/APP/2011/1450
	9 91 - 97 High Road, Ickenham     14964/APP/2011/2969
	Plans for North Planning Committee

